
  www.greenwoodmn.com

  

  

 
 

 
 
 
AGENDA  
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday, January 7, 2015 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
	  
The public is invited to speak when items come up on the agenda (comments are limited to 3 minutes). The public may speak regarding other 
items during Matters from the Floor (see below).  
 
 
7:00pm   OATH OF OFFICE: Mayor Deb Kind, Councilman Tom Fletcher, Councilman Bob Quam 
 

7:02pm  1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 
 

7:02pm  2.   CONSENT AGENDA 
Council members may remove consent agenda items for discussion. Removed items will be put under Other Business. 
 

A. Approve: 12-03-14 City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Approve: November Cash Summary Report 
C. Approve: December Certificates of Deposit Report 
D. Approve: December Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
E. Approve: January Payroll Register 

 

7:05pm  3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
This is an opportunity for the public to address the council regarding matters not on the agenda. The council will not 
engage in discussion or take action on items presented at this time. However, the council may ask for clarification and 
may include items on a future agenda. Comments are limited to 3 minutes.  

 

7:10pm  4.   PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, GUESTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS 
A. Announcement: Greenwood Night at the Old Log Theatre, Friday 01-16-15, 7:30pm,  

get discounted tickets at www.oldlog.com, code: Greenwood 
 

7:10pm  5.   PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A. None 

 

7:10pm  6.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. Discuss: Next Steps Regarding St. Alban’s Bay Lake Improvement District  
B. 1st Reading: Ordinance 241, Establishing Regulations for Recreational Fires 

 

7:20pm  7.   NEW BUSINESS 
A. Discuss: Excelsior's Letter Regarding the Southshore Center 
B. Consider: League of MN Cities Insurance Coverage for Volunteers  
C. Consider: Res 01-15, Appointments & Assignments for 2015 

 

7:45pm  8.   OTHER BUSINESS 
A. None   

 

7:45pm  9.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
A. Cook: Planning Commission, Sewer Study, Traffic Committee 
B. Fletcher: Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission, Fire 
C. Kind: Police, Administration, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 
D. Quam: Roads & Sewers, Mtka Comm Education, St. Alban's Bay Bridge, Traffic Committee 
E. Roy: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District, Lake Improvement District  

     

8:00pm  10.  ADJOURNMENT 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 2 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
Summary: The consent agenda typically includes the most recent council minutes, cash summary report, verifieds report, 
electronic fund transfers, and check registers. The consent agenda also may include the 2nd reading of ordinances that 
were approved unanimously by the council at the 1st reading. Council members may remove consent agenda items for 
further discussion. Removed items will be placed under Other Business on the agenda. 
 
Council Action: Required. Possible motion … 
 

1. I move the council approves the consent agenda items as presented. 
 



12-03-14 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 1 of 4 

 
MINUTES 
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday, December 3, 2014 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER ~ ROLL CALL ~ APPROVE AGENDA 

 

 Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 7pm. 
Members Present: Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam, and Rob Roy,  
Others Present: City Zoning Administrator / City Clerk Gus Karpas, City Attorney Mark Kelly  

 

Motion by Kind to approve the agenda with the addition of item 7J, Discuss Potential Volunteer Accident 
Coverage. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 

  
2.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approve: 11-05-14 City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Approve: 11-10-14 Election Canvassing Minutes 
C. Approve: October Cash Summary Report 
D. Approve: November Certificates of Deposit Report 
E. Approve: November Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
F. Approve: December Payroll Register 
G. Approve: October Recycling Report 

 

Motion by Kind to approve the consent agenda items as presented. Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
 

A. None  
 

4.   PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, GUESTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

A. Announcement: Lights Out and Winter Rules. Christmas and yard lights must be turned off by 11pm. Parking is 
prohibited on city streets after a 2-inch snowfall until roads have been plowed edge to edge. Depositing of snow 
onto a city street is prohibited. 
 

No council action was taken.  
 

5.   PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. None 
 

6.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

A. Discuss: Next Steps Regarding St. Alban’s Bay Lake Improvement District  
 

No council action was taken. 
 

7.   NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider: Resolution 33-14 Variance Findings, Michael & Deborah Jonikas, 4930 Meadville St 
 

Motion by Fletcher to adopt resolution 33-14 laying out the findings of fact approving the variance 
application of Michael and Deborah Jonikas with language to fill in the blanks and correct language on 
the resolution. And further move that the council directs the city clerk to mail a copy of the findings to the 
applicant and the DNR, and place an Affidavit of Mailing for each of the mailings in the property file. 
Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
 
 
 



12-03-14 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 2 of 4 

 
B. Consider: Resolution 34-14 Approving Final Tax Levy Certification and Resolution 37-14 Approving 2015 Budget 

(public comment opportunity) 
 

No one from the public was present to comment regarding the tax levy or budget. 
 
Motion by Roy to adopt resolution 34-14 approving the 2014 tax levy in the amount of $642,782 to be 
collected in 2015. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
Motion by Roy to adopt resolution 37-14 approving the 2015 general fund budget in the amount of 
$764,819. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0.  
 

C. Consider: 2014 Budget Adjustments to Line Items  
 

Motion by Fletcher to approve the following line item adjustments to the 2014 budget EXPENSES: 
 

General Fund 
Code Number Line Item Title 

Original 2014  
Budget Amount 

12-03-14 
Adjustment CHANGE 

101-42400-308 Zoning Administration 3,327 0  

101-42400-309 Public Notices 850 2,500 1,650 

101-42400-310 Building Inspections  22,080 45,000 22,920 

TOTAL    24,570 

 
AND the following line item adjustments to the 2014 budget REVENUES: 
 

General Fund  
Code Number Line Item Title 

Original 2014 
Budget Amount 

12-03-14 
Adjustment CHANGE 

101-32210 Building Permits 30,000 50,570 20,570 

101-32211 Electric Permits 2,000 6,000 4,000 

TOTAL    
24,570 

 
Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

D. Consider: 2014 Budget Fund Transfers and Year-End Contributions 
 

Motion by Cook to approve the following 2014 budgeted fund transfers: 
 

$3,346 from 605-49300-721 Marina Fund Transfer  
to 101-39200 General Fund for Administrative Expense Reimbursement 

 
$12,500 from 605-49300-720 Marina Fund Transfer  
to 101-39201 General Fund 

 
$10,866 from 602-43200-720 Sewer Fund Transfer  
to 101-39202 General Fund for Administrative Expense Reimbursement 

 
$1,625 from 502-43200-720 Stormwater Fund Transfer  
to 101-39203 General Fund for Administrative Expense Reimbursement 
 
$20,000 from 101-49000-500 General Fund Bridge Transfer  
to 403-39200 Bridge Fund 
 
$40,000 from General Fund 101-43200-500 Major Road Improvements Transfer 
to 404-36230 Road Improvement Fund 
 
Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
 
 

 



12-03-14 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 3 of 4 

E. Consider: 2015 License Applications 
 

Motion by Quam to approve 2015 licenses for the entities listed below contingent upon the city receiving 
applications and fees by 12-31-14: 

a) Commercial Marinas Bean's Greenwood Marina 
 Excelsior Bay Harbor 
 Kreslin’s Marina 
 

b) Liquor Excelsior Entertainment LLC (Old Log) 
 

c) Rental Permits David Colwell, 21830 Byron Circle 
  Terry & Jill Nagel, 21885 Byron Circle 
  Jason Johnson, 21080 Excelsior Blvd 
  Sunny Kim, 21380 Excelsior Blvd 
  Lake Mtka Associates, 21650 Fairview Street 
  Mark & Jean Lewry, 21690 Fairview Street 
  David Rubenstein, 21885 Fairview Street 
  Andrew Althsuser, 5200 Greenwood Circle 
  John Klinkner, 5205 Greenwood Circle 
  Mary Kellogg, 5050 Highview Place 
  Jim Norman, 5370 Manor Road 
  Juliann Schultz, 5470 Manor Road 
  Scott & Lisa Christian, 5500 Maple Heights Road 
  Patty Loftus, 5165 Meadville Street 
  Thomas Hammer, 5260 Meadville Street 
  Keith Wilcock, 21260 Minnetonka Blvd 

 
d) Tobacco Greenwood Market  

 
e) Trash Allied Waste 
  Aspen Waste 
  Blackowiak Disposal 
  Randy’s Sanitation 

 Vintage Waste 
               Waste Management 
 

Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
F. Discuss: Potential Recreational Fire Ordinance 

 

Motion by Kind to direct staff to prepare an amendment to section 475 to regulate recreational fires and 
place on the 01-07-15 council agenda for a 1st reading. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
G. Consider: Resolution 35-14 Meeting Dates for 2015 

 

Motion by Fletcher to approve resolution 35-14 to set key dates for 2015. Second by Cook.  
Motion passed 5-0. 

 
H. Consider: Resolution 36-14 Regarding League of MN Cities Sewer Back-Up Insurance 

 

Motion by Fletcher to approve resolution 36-14 regarding sewer back-up coverage though the League of 
MN Cities Insurance Trust. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
I. Discuss: Deephaven's Letter Regarding Southshore Center  

 

No council action taken. 
 

J. Discuss: Potential Volunteer Accident Insurance Coverage  
 

The city council consensus was to discuss this further at the January meeting. 
 



12-03-14 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 4 of 4 

8.  OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. None  
 
9.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Cook: Planning Commission, Greenwood Circle Xcel Projects, Sewer Study, Speed Committee 
B. Fletcher: Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission, Fire 
C. Kind: Police, Administration, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 
D. Quam: Roads & Sewers, Minnetonka Community Education, St. Alban's Bay Bridge, Speed Committee 
E. Roy: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District, Lake Improvement District  
 

No council action was taken regarding any of the council reports. 
 

10.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by Cook to adjourn the meeting at 8:25pm. Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
This document is intended to meet statutory requirements for city council meeting minutes. A video recording was made of the meeting, 
which provides a verbatim account of what transpired. The video recording is available for viewing on LMCC TV channel 8 for 1 month, 
at www.lmcc-tv.org for 1 year, and on DVD at the city office (permanent archive).  



`

Variance with Variance with 
Month 2013 2014 Prior Month Prior Year
January $812,019 $973,698 -$72,277 $161,679
February $805,692 $976,134 $2,436 $170,442
March $793,435 $942,468 -$33,666 $149,033
April $720,170 $878,040 -$64,428 $157,870
May $694,987 $879,272 $1,232 $184,285
June $663,171 $808,884 -$70,388 $145,713
July $924,057 $1,029,060 $220,176 $105,003
August $917,234 $1,013,814 -$15,246 $96,580
September $826,755 $960,083 -$53,731 $133,328
October $788,426 $872,707 -$87,376 $84,281
November $784,533 $871,871 -$836 $87,338
December $1,045,975 -$871,871 -$1,045,975

Bridgewater Bank Money Market $372,262
Bridgewater Bank Checking $6,965
Beacon Bank CD $404,804
Beacon Bank Money Market $84,280
Beacon Bank Checking $3,559

$871,871
ALLOCATION BY FUND
General Fund $235,347
Special Project Fund $0
General Fund Designated for Parks $27,055
Bridge Capital Project Fund $98,463
Road Improvement Fund $0
Stormwater Fund $5,065
Sewer Enterprise Fund $447,786
Marina Enterprise Fund $58,155

$871,871

$0 

$200,000 

$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

City of Greenwood 
Monthly	  Cash	  Summary	  

2013 

2014 



GREENWOOD CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

Report Date: 12-22-14

Acct # Bank Date Term Maturity Rate Amount
101-10407 Beacon Bank 01/04/14 12 month 01/04/15 0.40% 61,498.14$       
101-10408 Beacon Bank 04/05/14 12 month 04/05/15 0.40% 61,113.78$       
101-10411 Beacon Bank 09/22/14 9 month 06/22/15 0.50% 80,000.00$       
101-10409 Beacon Bank 08/05/14 12 month 08/05/15 0.40% 61,176.52$       
101-10412 Beacon Bank 09/22/14 13 month 10/22/15 0.70% 80,000.00$       
101-10410 Beacon Bank 11/06/14 13 month 12/06/15 0.70% 61,015.69$       

TOTAL 404,804.13$     

CITY COUNCIL POLICY: 09-03-14 Motion by Roy to authorize the administrative committee to open CDs with a maximum initial maturity of
25 months with a combined maximum total CD balance of $500,000 at Beacon Bank or Bridgewater Bank. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0.



M = Manual Check, V = Void Check  

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register - Summary Report Page:     1 

Dec 22, 2014  03:25pm 
Check Issue Date(s): 12/01/2014 - 12/31/2014  

 
Per Date Check No Vendor No Payee Check GL Acct Amount

12/14 12/01/2014 12421 822 ECM PUBLISHERS INC 101-20100 37.24 
12/14 12/01/2014 12422 841 LAW OFFICE GREGORY E KELLER PA 101-20100 529.00 
12/14 12/01/2014 12423 38 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 101-20100 15,184.58 
12/14 12/01/2014 12424 745 Vintage Waste Systems 101-20100 1,628.25 
12/14 12/01/2014 12425 145 XCEL ENERGY 602-20100 174.80 
12/14 12/22/2014 12426 738 AVENET WEB SOLUTIONS 101-20100 375.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12427 51 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 602-20100 2,530.50 
12/14 12/22/2014 12428 625 BONNIE LANE 101-20100 341.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12429 774 CINDY PAEPER 101-20100 162.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12430 9 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 101-20100 9,777.96 
12/14 12/22/2014 12431 792 CORNERSTONE INDUSTRIES INC 101-20100 713.30 
12/14 12/22/2014 12432 846 CYNTHIA REEDER 101-20100 135.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12433 847 DIANE SHELGREN 101-20100 148.50 
12/14 12/22/2014 12434 68 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 602-20100 26.20 
12/14 12/22/2014 12435 75 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER 101-20100 70.27 
12/14 12/22/2014 12436 601 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER 101-20100 8,500.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12437 766 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER 101-20100 719.07 
12/14 12/22/2014 12438 626 HENRY WUDLICK 101-20100 162.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12439 629 JAN GRAY 101-20100 110.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12440 845 JENNIFER GALLAGHER 101-20100 76.50 
12/14 12/22/2014 12441 776 JUDY SPIEGEL 101-20100 135.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12442 3 KELLY LAW OFFICES 101-20100 690.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12443 841 LAW OFFICE GREGORY E KELLER PA 101-20100 667.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12444 26 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES 101-20100 798.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12445 844 MARY BETH DARUSMONT 101-20100 216.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12446 747 MARY JO NEWMAN 101-20100 162.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12447 105 METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES 602-20100 1,912.42 
12/14 12/22/2014 12448 712 PAMELA CANNING 101-20100 90.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12449 772 PAT MCGOWAN 101-20100 162.00 
12/14 12/22/2014 12450 145 XCEL ENERGY 101-20100 413.36 

          Totals: 46,646.95 

           Dated: ______________________________________________________

           Mayor: ______________________________________________________

  City Council: ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

City Recorder: ______________________________________________________



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Paid Invoice Report Page:     1 

Payment Date(s): 12/01/2014 - 12/31/2014 Dec 22, 2014  03:25pm 
 

Vendor No Invoice No Description Inv Date Invoice Amt Disc Amt Check Amt Check No Chk Date

3 KELLY LAW OFFICES
6302 GENERAL LEGAL 12/05/2014 690.00 .00 690.00 12442 12/22/2014 

          Total 3 690.00 .00 690.00 

9 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN
DEC 2014 Postage 12/01/2014 9,777.96 .00 9,777.96 12430 12/22/2014 

          Total 9 9,777.96 .00 9,777.96 

26 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES
201989 Membership Dues 2014-2015 12/01/2014 798.00 .00 798.00 12444 12/22/2014 

          Total 26 798.00 .00 798.00 

38 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT
DEC 2014 OPERATING BUDGET 12/01/2014 15,184.58 .00 15,184.58 12423 12/01/2014 

          Total 38 15,184.58 .00 15,184.58 

51 BOLTON & MENK, INC.
0172874 2014 MISC ENGINEERING 11/30/2014 209.50 .00 209.50 12427 12/22/2014 
0172875 2014 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 11/30/2014 353.00 .00 353.00 12427 12/22/2014 
0172876 2014 STREET IMPROVEMENTS 11/30/2014 916.50 .00 916.50 12427 12/22/2014 
0172877 2014 MS4 ADMN 11/30/2014 644.00 .00 644.00 12427 12/22/2014 
0172878 2014 I/I REDUCTION GRANT APP 11/30/2014 407.50 .00 407.50 12427 12/22/2014 

          Total 51 2,530.50 .00 2,530.50 

68 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL
127375 Gopher State calls 11/30/2014 26.20 .00 26.20 12434 12/22/2014 

          Total 68 26.20 .00 26.20 

75 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER
120214 TRUTH IN TAX NOTICES 12/02/2014 70.27 .00 70.27 12435 12/22/2014 

          Total 75 70.27 .00 70.27 

105 METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES
0001039193 Monthly wastewater Charge 12/02/2014 1,912.42 .00 1,912.42 12447 12/22/2014 

          Total 105 1,912.42 .00 1,912.42 

145 XCEL ENERGY
112014 LIFT STATION #4 11/20/2014 174.80 .00 174.80 12425 12/01/2014 
112814 Sleepy Hollow Road * 11/28/2014 413.36 .00 413.36 12450 12/22/2014 

          Total 145 588.16 .00 588.16 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Paid Invoice Report Page:     2 

Payment Date(s): 12/01/2014 - 12/31/2014 Dec 22, 2014  03:25pm 
 

Vendor No Invoice No Description Inv Date Invoice Amt Disc Amt Check Amt Check No Chk Date

601 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER
1000052061 1ST 1/2 2015 ASSMTS 11/26/2014 8,500.00 .00 8,500.00 12436 12/22/2014 

          Total 601 8,500.00 .00 8,500.00 

625 BONNIE LANE
110414 HEAD ELECTION JUDGE 11/04/2014 341.00 .00 341.00 12428 12/22/2014 

          Total 625 341.00 .00 341.00 

626 HENRY WUDLICK
110414 ELECTION JUDGE 11/04/2014 162.00 .00 162.00 12438 12/22/2014 

          Total 626 162.00 .00 162.00 

629 JAN GRAY
110414 HEAD ELECTION JUDGE 11/04/2014 110.00 .00 110.00 12439 12/22/2014 

          Total 629 110.00 .00 110.00 

712 PAMELA CANNING
110414 Election Judge 11/04/2014 90.00 .00 90.00 12448 12/22/2014 

          Total 712 90.00 .00 90.00 

738 AVENET WEB SOLUTIONS
35918 GOVOFFICE ANNUAL SVC PKG 12/02/2014 375.00 .00 375.00 12426 12/22/2014 

          Total 738 375.00 .00 375.00 

745 Vintage Waste Systems
112514 City Recycling Contract 11/25/2014 1,628.25 .00 1,628.25 12424 12/01/2014 

          Total 745 1,628.25 .00 1,628.25 

747 MARY JO NEWMAN
110414 Election Judge 11/04/2014 162.00 .00 162.00 12446 12/22/2014 

          Total 747 162.00 .00 162.00 

766 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER
1214-1 M100 MNTNCE 12/03/2014 141.73 .00 141.73 12437 12/22/2014 
1214-2 ELECTION SUPPLIES 12/03/2014 42.94 .00 42.94 12437 12/22/2014 
1214-3 AUTOMARK/M100 MNTNCE 12/03/2014 534.40 .00 534.40 12437 12/22/2014 

          Total 766 719.07 .00 719.07 

772 PAT MCGOWAN
110414 ELECTION JUDGE 11/04/2014 162.00 .00 162.00 12449 12/22/2014 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Paid Invoice Report Page:     3 

Payment Date(s): 12/01/2014 - 12/31/2014 Dec 22, 2014  03:25pm 
 

Vendor No Invoice No Description Inv Date Invoice Amt Disc Amt Check Amt Check No Chk Date

          Total 772 162.00 .00 162.00 

774 CINDY PAEPER
110414 ELECTION JUDGE 11/04/2014 162.00 .00 162.00 12429 12/22/2014 

          Total 774 162.00 .00 162.00 

776 JUDY SPIEGEL
110414 ELECTION JUDGE 11/04/2014 135.00 .00 135.00 12441 12/22/2014 

          Total 776 135.00 .00 135.00 

792 CORNERSTONE INDUSTRIES INC
1345 SIGN/POST MNTNCE 12/15/2014 713.30 .00 713.30 12431 12/22/2014 

          Total 792 713.30 .00 713.30 

822 ECM PUBLISHERS INC
163501 LEGAL NOTICE 11/20/2014 37.24 .00 37.24 12421 12/01/2014 

          Total 822 37.24 .00 37.24 

841 LAW OFFICE GREGORY E KELLER PA
111414 PROSECUTION BILL 11/14/2014 529.00 .00 529.00 12422 12/01/2014 
121614 PROSECUTION BILL 12/16/2014 667.00 .00 667.00 12443 12/22/2014 

          Total 841 1,196.00 .00 1,196.00 

844 MARY BETH DARUSMONT
110414 ELECTION JUDGE 11/04/2014 216.00 .00 216.00 12445 12/22/2014 

          Total 844 216.00 .00 216.00 

845 JENNIFER GALLAGHER
110414 ELECTION JUDGE 11/04/2014 76.50 .00 76.50 12440 12/22/2014 

          Total 845 76.50 .00 76.50 

846 CYNTHIA REEDER
110414 ELECTION JUDGE 11/04/2014 135.00 .00 135.00 12432 12/22/2014 

          Total 846 135.00 .00 135.00 

847 DIANE SHELGREN
110414 ELECTION JUDGE 11/04/2014 148.50 .00 148.50 12433 12/22/2014 

          Total 847 148.50 .00 148.50 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Paid Invoice Report Page:     4 

Payment Date(s): 12/01/2014 - 12/31/2014 Dec 22, 2014  03:25pm 
 

Vendor No Invoice No Description Inv Date Invoice Amt Disc Amt Check Amt Check No Chk Date

          Grand Totals: 46,646.95 .00 46,646.95 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register Page:     1 

Pay Period Date(s): 12/02/2014 to 01/01/2015 Dec 22, 2014  03:21pm 
 

Pay Per Check Check Description GL Amount
Date Jrnl Date Number Payee Emp No Account

01/01/15 PC 01/01/15 1011501 COOK, WILLIAM B. 37 001-10100 184.70 
01/01/15 PC 01/01/15 1011502 Fletcher, Thomas M 33 001-10100 84.70 
01/01/15 PC 01/01/15 1011503 Kind, Debra J. 34 001-10100 277.05 
01/01/15 PC 01/01/15 1011504 Quam, Robert 32 001-10100 184.70 
01/01/15 PC 01/01/15 1011505 ROY, ROBERT J. 38 001-10100 184.70 

          Grand Totals: 915.85 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 6A 

Agenda Date: 01-07-15 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss Next Steps Regarding St. Alban’s Bay Lake Improvement District  
 
Summary: St. Alban's Bay Captain Rob Roy has been leading the effort to establish a St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement 
District (SABLID). The next steps in the process are listed on the timeline below. The latest draft (10-06-14) of the  
St. Alban’s Bay Lake Improvement District Cooperative Agreement and exhibits were included in the November and 
December city council packets available for viewing at www.greenwoodmn.com. 
 
Per the attached letter and resolution from the city of Excelsior, they are moving forward with the process and they have 
set February 2, 2015 as the date for their public hearing. 
 
Timeline: Below is the timeline for the city council's reference ... 
 

07-11-14 SABLID petitions submitted to the Greenwood and Excelsior city councils. 
07-21-14 The Excelsior city council formally received the Excelsior SABLID petition. 
07-23-14 The Lake Minnetonka Conservation District approved a resolution in support of the SABLID. 14 ayes, 0 nays.  
08-06-14 The Greenwood city council formally received the Greenwood SABLID petition, ordered a public hearing, 

reviewed the first draft of a Joint Cooperative Agreement, and authorized Councilmembers Roy and Fletcher to 
work with Excelsior to incorporate Excelsior's comments into the Joint Cooperative Agreement. 

08-07-14 Public hearing notice submitted to Sun-Sailor. 
08-14-14 Public hearing notice published in Sun-Sailor. 
08-21-14 Public hearing notice mailed to affected property owners. 
09-03-14 The Greenwood city council holds 1st public hearing, reviews draft of Joint Cooperative Agreement, considers 

approval of Resolution of Intent. 
09-08-14 Submission of Resolution of Intent, public hearing notice, and related documents to DNR, MCWD, and LMCD. 

Note: 40 days notice of the public hearing is required for the DNR to review the documents. 
10-01-14 The Greenwood city council reviews draft Joint Cooperative Agreement and sends to Excelsior for their review. 
10-02-14 2nd public hearing notice submitted to Sun-Sailor. 
10-09-14 2nd public hearing notice published in Sun-Sailor. 
10-09-14 2nd public hearing notice mailed to affected property owners. 
11-05-14 The Greenwood city council holds the 2nd public hearing 
__-__-15 The Excelsior city council considers approval of the Joint Cooperative Agreement.  
__-__-15 The Greenwood city council considers approval of the Joint Cooperative Agreement.  
__-__-15 The final Joint Cooperative Agreement is sent to the DNR for their records. 
 
Council Action: No action is needed at this time. Once the Excelsior city council approves the cooperative agreement, 
the following motion may be considered ... 
 

1. I move the city council approves the Joint Cooperative Agreement dated _______________, 2015 and authorizes 
the mayor and city clerk to sign 3 copies of the agreement. (1) To be filed at the city of Greenwood. (2) To be sent 
to the city of Excelsior for their files. (3) To be sent to the DNR.  
 

2. Do nothing or other motion??? 



























  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 6B 

Agenda Date: 01-07-15 

Prepared by Deb Kind 
 
 

Agenda Item: 1st Reading: Ordinance 241 Establishing Regulations for Recreational Fire Ordinance  
 
Summary:	  Currently Excelsior, Shorewood, and Tonka Bay require an annual recreational fire permit through the 
Excelsior Fire District (EFD). Deephaven and Greenwood do not require an annual recreational fire permit. However, 
Deephaven does have rules regarding recreational fires. They just do not require a permit. Chief Gerber said that the EFD 
does not charge a fee for the permit and would like Greenwood to consider amending our ordinance to require a 
recreational fire permit. The city council discussed this topic at the 12-03-14 meeting and decided to move forward with an 
ordinance that establishes regulations for recreational fires, but does not require a permit (what Deephaven does).  
 
For the council's reference, chapter 12 of the city code book includes the following definition: 
 

Recreational Fires means wood-burning fireplaces and open fires used for outdoor food preparation or other 
recreational uses. 

 
For the council's reference, section 475.05 of the city code book says: 

Section 475.05. Open Burning Prohibited.  
From and after the effective date of this ordinance, except as herein otherwise provided, open burning shall be 
prohibited within the corporate limits of this municipality. 

 
Attached is the draft of the new recreational fire ordinance for the council's consideration. Strikeout text indicates text that 
is to be removed. Underlined text indicates text that is to be added. The draft ordinance is based on Deephaven's 
recreational fire ordinance. The draft ordinance was sent to the city attorney and Chief Gerber for their review.  
 
Ordinance Timeline: 

01-07-15 City council considers the 1st reading of the ordinance. 
02-04-15 City council considers the 2nd reading of the ordinance. 
02-05-15 Ordinance submitted to Sun-Sailor (if approved). 
02-12-15 Ordinance published in Sun-Sailor (the ordinance goes into effect the date it is published). 

 
Council Action: None required. Potential motions … 
 

1. I move the city council approves the 1st reading of ordinance 241 that amends section 475.10 to establish 
regulations for recreational fires. 
 

2. Do nothing or other motion ??? 
 
Greenwood code section 1215 requires 2 readings of all ordinances prior to adoption. The 2nd reading shall be within 3 months of the 1st reading. There 
may be changes between the 1st and 2nd readings. Ordinances go into effect once they are published in the city’s official newspaper. The planning 
commission must review and make a recommendation to the city council regarding any changes to the zoning code chapter 11. A public hearing, 
typically held by the planning commission, also is required for changes to chapter 11. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 241 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
AMENDING GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE SECTION 475.10  

TO ESTABLISH REGULATIONS FOR RECREATIONAL FIRES 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 
 

SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 475.10 is amended to read as follows:  

“Section 475.10. Exemptions from Open Burning Prohibitions. 
 
Subd. 1. Open burning of the types and subject to the conditions set forth in the subdivision that follows subdivisions 2 
and 3 below, shall be exempt from the prohibition of section 475.05 of this ordinance. 
 
Subd. 2. Recreational fires shall only be permitted under the below conditions. Any violations of the recreational fire 
conditions listed shall be a misdemeanor. 

 
1. A recreational fire fuel area (logs, branches, etc) shall have a total area of 3 feet or less in diameter and 3 feet or 

less in height. 
2. Recreational fires shall be contained within a fire ring, pit, container, or device designed for such use. 
3. The area within a 5-foot radius of the recreational fire shall be reasonably clear of all combustibles. 
4. Recreational fires shall not be conducted within 25 feet of a neighboring dwelling or garage. 
5. The fire shall be under the immediate supervision of the resident or his / her authorized adult representative. 
6. Buckets, shovels, garden hose, or a fire extinguisher shall be readily available for use at recreational fires. 
7. The prevailing wind at the time of the recreational fire shall be away from nearby residences and must be less 

than 15mph. 
8. No flammable or combustible liquids shall be used to kindle or rekindle a recreational fire. 
9. Only clean material can be burned as part of a recreational fire. Demolition debris, industrial solid waste, 

hazardous materials, oil, rubber, plastic, railroad ties, shingles, tarpaper, insulation, composition boards, 
sheetrock, wiring, painted materials, paint filters, garbage, chemically-treated wood, or other materials that would 
give off a toxic smoke irritant to nearby residents are prohibited material.  

10. The hours that recreational fires shall be extinguished are between 12midnight to 8am.  
11. Fires must be fully extinguished when unattended. 
12. Recreational fires can be cancelled or terminated at the discretion of the police or fire department if a complaint 

has been received from a nearby resident concerning the smoke, irritants, or a medical condition that is 
aggravated by the residential fire. 

13. No brush, tree limbs under 2 inches in diameter, leaves, grass, compost, or other yard waste shall be burned. No 
rubbish can be burned at any time. 

14. Recreational fires are prohibited when the fire danger level is at or above VERY HIGH. Current fire danger levels 
can be found at the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources website at www.dnr.state.mn.us. 

 
Subd. 3. Fires under managed supervision, for which a burning permit has been obtained from the city, and, where 
required by state law from the Pollution Control Agency, but limited to the following: 
 

a) Fires purposely set for the instruction and training of public and industrial fire-fighting personnel. 
b) Fires set for the elimination of a fire hazard that cannot be abated by any other practicable means. 
c) Fires purposely set for forest or game management and in accordance with the practices recommended by the 

Minnesota Department of Conservation, the Minnesota Department of Agriculture and the United States Forest 
Service. 

d) The burning of trees, brush, grass and other vegetable matter in the clearing of land, the maintenance of street, 
road and highway right-of-way, and in accepted agricultural land management practices. 

 
Subd. 4. Exemption to conduct fires under this section does not excuse the person from the consequences and damages 
or injuries which may result therefrom; nor does it exempt any person from regulations promulgated by the Minnesota 
Pollution Control Agency or any other governmental unit exercising jurisdiction in matters of pollution or fire hazard 
regulation. 
 
Subd. 5. The fee for a burning permit shall be determined by the council from time to time and set forth in chapter 5 of this 
code book.” 



 
SECTION 2. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 
Enacted by the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2015. 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS 
 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Gus E. Karpas, City Clerk 
 
First reading: _____, 2015 
Second reading: _____, 2015 
Publication: _____, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7A 

Agenda Date: 01-07-15 

Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Discuss Excelsior's Letter Regarding the Southshore Center 
 
Summary: The Southshore Center (SSC) is a community center located near Shorewood City Hall that was built in 1996 
with funds from the cities of Excelsior, Deephaven, Greenwood, Tonka Bay, and Shorewood (the owner cities), in addition 
to funds from the Friends of the SSC. The Friends operated the facility with funds from grants and their membership until 
2008 when grant money dried up. From 2009 to present, the city of Shorewood has managed the SSC operations. 
Greenwood has made annual voluntary contributions to the SSC since 2009.  
 
In August 2013, Shorewood initiated discussions with the 5 owner cities to determine the future of the SSC. A SSC 
Advisory Committee was formed and engaged students from Minnetonka High School’s Vantage program to conduct 
research and make recommendations.  
 
On 01-23-14, the Vantage team presented their research and recommendations. 
 
In February 2014, SSC Advisory Committee members Tonka Bay Councilmember Elli Ansari and Greenwood Mayor Deb 
Kind developed The Cove 3-year pilot project, which partners with Minnetonka Community Education to see if it is 
possible to operate the facility at close to break-even. The Cove concept was based on the Vantage students’ 
recommendations.  
 
On 03-05-14, the city of Deephaven sent a letter stating they “would no longer be participating in any efforts relating to the 
Southshore Center.” 
 
In March and April 2014, Elli and Deb presented The Cove concept to the Excelsior, Greenwood, Shorewood, and Tonka 
Bay city councils. The Excelsior, Greenwood, and Tonka Bay city councils were receptive to The Cove concept. 
 
On 06-03-14, the city of Shorewood sent a letter to the owner cities stating they did not think The Cove concept was 
viable, that it was their intention to continue to operate the SSC, and asked the other owner cities to participate in the 
costs or give up their ownership interest. The Greenwood council discussed Shorewood’s letter at the July 2014 council 
meeting and decided to send the attached 07-14-14 letter to “withdraw from participation.”  
 
On 10-20-14, the city of Shorewood sent another letter asking the owner cities to approve a draft “notice of termination” 
and sign a “quit-claim deed relinquishing real property interests in the Southshore Center” to the city of Shorewood.  
The Greenwood council discussed Shorewood’s second letter at the 11-05-14 council meeting and decided to resend the 
07-14-14 letter along with Greenwood’s 2014 voluntary contribution check in the amount of $1200. 
 
On 12-16-14, the city of Excelsior sent the attached letter suggesting that the “Shorewood Option” listed in paragraph 6(a) 
of the 1996 agreement is the best way forward and also suggesting that the mayors of the 5 owner cities meet to discuss 
the issue with the goal of bringing back a recommendation to their respective city councils. For the council's reference,  
a copy of the 1996 cooperative agreement is attached. The city council will discuss Excelsior’s letter at the 01-07-15 
council meeting.  
 
Council Action: No action required. Potential motions … 

 
1. I move the city council authorizes Mayor Kind to participate in discussions with the other Southshore Center 

owner city mayors with the goal to bring back a recommendation to the owner city councils. 
 
2. Do nothing or other motion ??? 

 























  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  July 14, 2014 
To:  Southshore Center Founding City Councils of Excelsior, Deephaven, Shorewood, Tonka Bay 
From: Greenwood City Council 
 
RE:  RESPONSE TO JUNE 3, 2014 SHOREWOOD LETTER  
 
The city of Greenwood received the June 3, 2014 letter from the city of Shorewood requesting the Southshore 
Center (SSC) Founding Cities respond regarding interest to “continue in an ownership position.” 
 
We are disappointed that Shorewood is not interested in either pursuing or further discussing The Cove concept 
for the SSC. However, since the SSC is located in and supported by Shorewood, we believe it is important for 
Shorewood to take a leadership role with any new direction for the SSC. Since we disagree on the best direction 
for the SSC, we believe the best course is for Greenwood to withdraw from participation. 
 
In accordance with paragraph 6 of the 1996 Cooperative Agreement for the Southshore Senior / Community 
Center, the city of Greenwood: 
 

• Will no longer participate in sharing costs for operations, capital improvements, and decisions relating to 
the Southshore Center effective August 13, 2014.  

• Will continue to have undivided ownership interest in the Southshore Center.  
 
The city of Greenwood would be open to discussing an amendment to the Cooperative Agreement in which 
Greenwood may give up its ownership interest in the SSC while maintaining access for Greenwood residents. 
However, before entering into such an agreement we would need information regarding the intended plans for the 
future of the SSC. 
 
We recognize the desire by Shorewood to move in their own direction, but we also believe that it is important to 
protect the interests of Greenwood residents in the facility that Greenwood helped establish and has consistently 
supported with time, money, and energy. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Mayor Deb Kind 952.401.9181, dkind100@gmail.com. 
 





  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7B 

Agenda Date: 01-07-15 

Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consider League of MN Cities Insurance Coverage for Volunteers  
 
Summary: At the December 2014 council meeting, Councilman Fletcher suggested the council consider purchasing 
insurance coverage for volunteers. Attached are related documents. The council will discuss this topic further at the  
01-07-15 city council meeting. 
 
Council Action: No action required. Potential motions … 

 
1. I move the city council authorizes city staff to purchase League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust volunteer 

coverage to be effective as soon as possible. 
 
2. Do nothing or other motion ??? 

 



From: Carl Bennetsen carl@northerncapital-mn.com
Subject: Greenwood: Volunteer Accident Plan quote

Date: December 1, 2014 at 3:02 PM
To: dkind100@gmail.com, tfletcher@aexcom.com
Cc: Ron Youngdahl (REMOTE) rly@ronyoungdahl.com, Kristy Hagner kristyhagner@northerncapital-mn.com

Deb$and$Tom,

$

See$the$a/ached$Volunteer$Accident$Coverage$quote$per$your$request.$$Also$a/ached$is$an$ar?cle

LMCIT$Workers’$Compensa?on$Coverage$Guide$with$a$sec?on$“(2)$Op?onal$volunteer$accident

coverage”.

$

The$quote$is$from$12/01/2014$to$6/16/2015$with$Basic$Coverage$(No$Medical)$Premium$$46.00$and$an

addi?onal$Op?onal$Medical$Premium$$21.00.$The$Volunteer$Accident$coverage$if$chosen$would$then

be$renewed$for$6/16/2015$to$6/16/2016$for$an$annual$premium$of$$75.00$for$the$Basic$Coverage$(No

Medical)$and$an$addi?onal$$34.00$for$the$Op?onal$Medical$coverage.

$

The$reason$the$ini?al$coverage$will$be$renewed$6/16/2015$is$to$correspond$to$the$renewal$date$of$your

City’s$Workers’$Compensa?on$coverage.

$

Please$let$me$know$whether$or$not$the$Council$passes$a$resolu?on$to$purchase$this$coverage.

$

Do$you$need$anything$else?

$

Thanks,

Carl$Bennetsen

Public$En?ty$Accounts$Manager

Northern$Capital$Insurance

Tel:$952_996_8864

carlbennetsen@northerncapital_mn.com

$

From: Meyer, Barb [mailto:bmeyer@lmc.org] 
Sent: Monday, December 01, 2014 2:27 PM
To: Carl Bennetsen
Subject: Volunteer Accident Plan quote
$

Carl,

$

Here$is$a$quote$for$the$volunteer$accident$plan.$$I$pro_rated$the$quote$using$December$1st$as$the

effec?ve$date.$$The$2015$premium$for$a$full$year$will$be$$75.00$for$the$Basic$and$an$addi?onal$$34.00

for$the$Op?onal$Medical$Benefit.

$

The$city$had$this$coverage$back$in$2007.

$

Let$me$know$if$you$have$any$ques?ons.

$

Thanks,

Barb

$
Barb Meyer| Underwriting Technician
Tel: (651) 215-4173| Fax: (651) 281-1298 
bmeyer@lmc.org | www.lmc.org 
League of Minnesota Cities 
145 University Ave. West | St. Paul, MN 55103

$

mailto:Bennetsencarl@northerncapital-mn.com
mailto:Bennetsencarl@northerncapital-mn.com
mailto:dkind100@gmail.com
mailto:tfletcher@aexcom.com
mailto:rly@ronyoungdahl.com
mailto:Hagnerkristyhagner@northerncapital-mn.com
mailto:Hagnerkristyhagner@northerncapital-mn.com
mailto:bmeyer@lmc.org
http://www.lmc.org/






 

INFORMATION MEMO 

LMCIT Workers’ Compensation 
Coverage Guide 

 
 

Learn about the workers’ compensation statute and the unique coverage features offered by the 
League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust. Understand premium and deductible options. Includes 
information on filing a workers’ compensation claim.   

RELEVANT LINKS: 

I. About the League of Minnesota Cities 
Insurance Trust (LMCIT) 

 LMCIT is a cooperative joint-powers organization formed by Minnesota 
Cities in 1980 as one of the first municipal self-insurance pools in the 
country. It exists solely to meet the risk management and coverage needs of 
Minnesota cities and other types of entities. It provides coverage for 
members’ property, liability, workers’ compensation, and auto risks. 

For more information 
contact the LMCIT 
underwriting department 
651.281.1200 
800.925.1122. 

This Coverage Guide provides a summary of workers’ compensation 
coverage available through the Trust. LMCIT urges members to examine 
the coverage document for actual wording. In all cases, the coverage 
document determines coverage, exclusions, and limitations. 

 

II. Workers’ Compensation Coverage 
Minn. Stat. § 176.181. 
 
Handbook, Chapter 10, 
Working Conditions for 
Public Employees. 
 
 

With certain exceptions, all cities must pay workers’ compensation benefits 
to its employees for all injuries from accidents arising out of, and in the 
course of, city employment. The law is designed to ensure the quick and 
efficient delivery of benefits to injured workers. The law doesn’t require 
cities to purchase coverage for this purpose, but they should do so, unless 
the council feels the city is financially able to pay compensation benefits 
from the city treasury. 

 In the right circumstance, self-insuring can be an effective way for a city to 
handle its workers’ compensation exposure. For this reason, LMCIT is 
more than willing to work with a city that is interested in self-insuring and 
for whom self-insurance is feasible and makes sense.   

145 University Ave. West www.lmc.org 10/31/2014 
Saint Paul, MN 55103-2044 (651) 281-1200 or (800) 925-1122 © 2014 All Rights Reserved 

This material is provided as general information and is not a substitute for legal advice. Consult your attorney for advice concerning specific situations. 

 
                       

http://www.lmc.org/
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.181
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/chapter10.pdf


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 But a decision to self-insure shouldn’t be made lightly. Self-insuring has 

long-term consequences and carries significant risk with it. A permanently 
disabling injury could require the city to make weekly benefit payments for 
as much as20, 30, or even 40 years. For example, LMCIT is presently 
making payments on an injury that occurred in 1980. Best current 
projections is that those payments will continue until about 2015. Because 
liabilities for workers’ compensation injuries can affect the city’s finances 
for many years in the future, it is very important to understand and evaluate 
carefully the nature and the potential extent of the risks the city is retaining 
when it decides to self-insure.  

 

A. Injury definition 
Minn. Stat. § 176.021, 
subd. 1. 

Workers’ compensation is a “no-fault system.” In other words, regardless 
of who is at fault, an injured employee is covered under the workers’ 
compensation statute. However, not all injuries that occur at work or during 
work hours are compensable. An injury defined by statute as compensable 
must have the following three elements: 

Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 16. • The employee must sustain a personal injury or occupational disease. 

• The personal injury or occupational disease must arise out of the 
employment. 

• The personal injury or occupational disease must occur in the course of 
employment. 

 Non-work related injuries include: 

Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 16. 
 
Minn. Stat. § 176.021, 
subd. 9. 

• Idiopathic injuries, which are injuries caused by a personal condition or 
where there is no known cause for the injury. An example is an 
employee who has sudden knee pain when getting up from a chair. 

• Injuries that occur while participating in voluntary recreational 
programs such as a city-sponsored picnic. An employee who injures his 
or her back while playing volleyball is an example of this type of 
injury. This does not apply if an employee was ordered or assigned to 
attend.  

• Injuries that occur during unpaid lunch breaks where the employer has 
no supervision or control during breaks. An example is an employee 
who injures his or her arm while playing flag football. 

• Injuries that do not arise out of the employee’s employment. An 
example is an employee who breaks his or her tooth while eating an 
apple at lunch.  

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 2 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.021
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.021
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.021
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.021


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 

B. Benefits 
 The goal of the workers’ compensation statute is to assist an injured 

employee in quickly obtaining appropriate medical care to help the 
employee return as close as possible to his or her pre-injury condition. If an 
employee has sustained an injury covered by workers’ compensation, he or 
she may be entitled to:  

Minn. Stat. § 176.135.  
 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 18. 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 176.101. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 176.111. 
 
Minn. Stat. § 176.102. 

• Medical benefits come with no cap under the workers’ compensation 
statute, but medical providers are subject to a maximum fee.   

• Indemnity benefits, or more commonly known as lost time benefits or 
wage replacement, are based on the individual’s actual earning from all 
employment.   

• Temporary total disability is paid when an employee is completely 
disabled from work for a temporary period of time. 

• Temporary partial disability is paid when an employee receives less 
than his or her pre-injury wage. 

• Permanent partial disability is paid when a disability rating is provided 
by a treating physician. 

• Permanent total disability is paid when an employee is permanently 
restricted from employment. 

• Death benefits. 
• Rehabilitation benefits may be granted if the employee requests and the 

employer is in agreement that consultation services of a qualified 
rehabilitation consultant (QRC) be obtained. If the employee qualifies, 
rehabilitation services may be provided. Generally, a QRC is required if 
the employee is not back to work at 90 days from the date of injury. 

 

C. Unique features of LMCIT’s workers’ 
compensation coverage  

LMC information memo, 
Comparing Workers’ 
Compensation Coverage 
Quotes. 

LMCIT provides the same workers’ compensation coverage and benefits as 
set out by statute. However, it also picks up some risks that statutory 
workers’ compensation coverage doesn’t cover.    

 

1. Exposure testing  
Workers’ Compensation 
and Employer’s Liability 
Coverage Document, Part 
3. 
 
29 C.F.R. § 
1910.1030(f)(1)(i). 
 

According to Federal and State Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (OSHA) requirements, as well as Minnesota statutes, 
employers are responsible to pay for exposure testing for certain employees 
if they are exposed to some bloodborne pathogens or infectious diseases. 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 3 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.135
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.101
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.111
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.102
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/comparingworkerscompcoveragequotes.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/comparingworkerscompcoveragequotes.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/comparingworkerscompcoveragequotes.pdf
https://www.osha.gov/pls/oshaweb/owadisp.show_document?p_table=STANDARDS&p_id=10051
https://www.osha.gov/pls/oshaweb/owadisp.show_document?p_table=STANDARDS&p_id=10051


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 An employee who is exposed to an infectious disease such as AIDS, 

hepatitis, tuberculosis, or anthrax but hasn’t actually contracted the disease 
may not have an “injury” for purposes of workers’ compensation. Because 
there is no injury or occupational disease, a standard workers’ 
compensation insurance policy won’t pay for diagnostic testing if an 
individual has been exposed, even though OSHA requires the city to 
provide that testing. 

LMC information memo, 
Vaccinations and Infectious 
Disease Testing Coverage. 

LMCIT automatically covers this employer responsibility at no additional 
premium charge. In fact, LMCIT coverage for exposure testing is broader 
than OSHA or statutory mandates. LMCIT covers the cost to test any city 
employee who is exposed in the course of his or her employment, not just 
public safety workers as required by law. The list of bloodborne pathogens 
and diseases covered by LMCIT is broader than required, and includes 
exposure testing for meningitis and anthrax exposures. 

 When an employee has been exposed to an infectious disease, LMCIT also 
covers the diagnostic testing of the person or persons who were the source 
of the disease.   

 

2. Employer’s liability 
Workers’ Compensation 
and Employer’s Liability 
Coverage Document, Part 
2. 
 
Minn. Stat. § 3.736, subd. 
3. 
 

The workers’ compensation statute precludes most tort claims against an 
employer for injuries to an employee, but there are a few ways such claims 
can occur. For example, if an employee is injured while operating a piece 
of equipment, the employee may collect workers’ compensation benefits 
from the city and also decide to sue the equipment manufacturer for injuries 
that may have been caused by poor product design. The manufacturer in 
turn sues the employee’s supervisor for negligent supervision. 

Minn. Stat. § 466.04, subd. 
1. 

LMCIT covers, under Coverage B, the city’s potential tort liability for 
injuries to an employee. City officers, employees, and volunteers are 
named as insureds and the limits under Coverage B match the $1.5 million 
statutory limit on municipal tort liability.   

 

3. Federal laws 
Workers’ Compensation 
and Employer’s Liability 
Coverage Document, 
General, Section E. 

 
Longshore and Harbor 
Workers’ Compensation 
Act, ch. 18, 33 U.S.C. §§ 
901-950 (2014). 

LMCIT coverage automatically provides coverage for any liability the city 
may have under the Longshoremen’s and Harborworkers’ Act, the Jones 
Act, or the Federal Employers’ Liability Act. 

Jones Act, 46 U.S.C.A. § 
30104 (2014).  
 
Federal Employers’ 
Liability Act, 45 U.S.C.A. 
§§ 51-60 (2014). 

These are federal laws governing an employer’s liability for injuries to 
certain employees. Under some circumstances, a city employee might be 
entitled to benefits under one of these laws instead of, or in addition to, 
Minnesota workers’ compensation statute. 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 4 

http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/vaccinationsandinfectiousdiseasetestingcoverage.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/vaccinationsandinfectiousdiseasetestingcoverage.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=3.736
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=3.736
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=466.04
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=466.04
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=Longshore&f=treesort&fq=true&num=15&hl=true&edition=prelim&granuleId=USC-prelim-title33-chapter18-front
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=Longshore&f=treesort&fq=true&num=15&hl=true&edition=prelim&granuleId=USC-prelim-title33-chapter18-front
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=Longshore&f=treesort&fq=true&num=15&hl=true&edition=prelim&granuleId=USC-prelim-title33-chapter18-front
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=Longshore&f=treesort&fq=true&num=15&hl=true&edition=prelim&granuleId=USC-prelim-title33-chapter18-front
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2008-title46/pdf/USCODE-2008-title46-subtitleIII-chap301-sec30104.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2008-title46/pdf/USCODE-2008-title46-subtitleIII-chap301-sec30104.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2009-title45/pdf/USCODE-2009-title45-chap2-sec51.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2009-title45/pdf/USCODE-2009-title45-chap2-sec51.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2009-title45/pdf/USCODE-2009-title45-chap2-sec51.pdf


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 

4. Obstructing an employee from seeking benefits 
Workers’ Compensation 
and Employer’s Liability 
Coverage Document, Part 
2.D. 
 
Minn. Stat. § 176.82. 

State law allows an injured employee to sue the city and/or a city officer or 
employee for damages for coercing or obstructing the employee from 
seeking workers’ compensation benefits. A city with 16 or more employees 
can also be sued for failing to offer continued “light duty” employment to 
an injured employee if such employment is available. 

 LMCIT does not provide coverage for actual damages, but it does pay for 
defending the city or a city officer or employee on a claim seeking damages 
under this statute. 

 

5. Elected and appointed officials 
Workers’ Compensation 
and Employer’s Liability 
Coverage Document, 
General, Section B. 
 
Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 9 (6). 

Elected and appointed officials are not automatically covered by the 
workers’ compensation statute. However, municipal officers elected or 
appointed for a regular term of office are considered to be employees for 
workers’ compensation purposes only if the city has passed an ordinance or 
resolution to that effect.   

 The statutory provision clearly allows a city to provide workers’ 
compensation benefits for: 

 • Mayors 
• Councilmembers 
• Elected clerks 
• Elected treasurers 

 Appointed members of other administrative boards the city creates pursuant 
to statute also fall under this provision, including boards or committees that 
exercise some level of independent decision-making authority. Some 
common examples include: 

 • Planning commissions 
• Utilities commissions 
• Park boards 
• Hospital or nursing home boards 

 Some cities may provide specific terms for certain appointed positions such 
as the assessor, engineer, police chief, and so on. Under a strict reading of 
the statute, these individuals wouldn’t be covered by workers’ 
compensation unless the city passed an ordinance or resolution to add 
coverage, assuming these individuals are considered “officers” rather than 
“employees.” 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 5 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.82
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 

a. Adopting an ordinance or resolution to provide 
workers’ compensation coverage to elected and 
appointed officials 

Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 9 (6). 

The statute requires passing “an ordinance or resolution” to include elected 
and appointed officials in workers’ compensation coverage. Passing an 
ordinance is likely a better option than passing a resolution. An ordinance 
is easier to track because it is recorded in the city’s ordinance books and 
council minutes. It is permanent. A resolution is acceptable under the 
statute, but could pose administrative problems. Resolutions often are 
recorded only in council minutes, so tracking down a resolution years later 
can be difficult and time-consuming. 

See Handbook, Chapter 7, 
Meetings, Motions, 
Resolutions, and 
Ordinances, Section IV-C1, 
Form, content and adoption 
of ordinances. 

The ordinance (or resolution) should list officers the city intends to cover. 
Appointed positions with a specific term, such as an assessor or engineer, 
should be listed as well if the city intends to cover them under workers’ 
compensation. If the city wishes to extend coverage only to the mayor and 
council, the ordinance or resolution should refer specifically and only to 
those elected officials. Sample ordinance language for this key provision is: 

Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 9 (6). 

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 176.011, subd. 9, clause 6—the Minnesota 
Workers’ Compensation Statute—members of the following boards, 
commissions, and committees are included in the city’s workers’ 
compensation coverage:  
• [Members of the city council] 
• [Members of the planning commission] 
• [Other] 
• [Other] 

 Once an ordinance or resolution is adopted, these officers qualify as any 
other employee for workers’ compensation benefits. That means—as with 
any employee—those officers can receive medical benefits and indemnity 
benefits. Indemnity, or lost time, benefits are based on the individual’s 
actual earnings from all employment. In other words, benefits are based on 
the total earnings from the individual’s regular employment plus the salary 
(if any) he or she receives from the city. The annual imputed salary is used 
only to calculate premiums and doesn’t figure into the benefit calculation.    

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 6 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/chapter07.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 It’s important to note that workers’ compensation benefits are paid only 

when the individual’s injury is the result of his or her city-related activity. 
There can be many borderline situations in which it is debatable whether 
elected or appointed officers are conducting official council business on 
behalf of and at the request of the city. For example, a mayor might be 
individually asked to attend a meeting of the Chamber of Commerce to 
discuss and explain city policies or proposals the council is considering. 
Cities might want to consider adopting an ordinance or resolution that 
specifies whether the city considers such activities to be within the scope of 
duties its elected officials are expected to perform. 

Barb Meyer 
LMCIT Underwriter 
651.215.4173 
800.925.1122 
bmeyer@lmc.org 

After the city council passes an ordinance or resolution to cover city 
officers under workers’ compensation, please send a copy of the ordinance 
or resolution to the LMCIT underwriting department. LMCIT assumes that 
city officers are not covered unless specifically identified and 
communicated to LMCIT. 

 
b. Adopting an ordinance or resolution to not provide 

workers’ compensation coverage to elected and 
appointed officials 

 A city should also pass an ordinance if it chooses not to cover city council 
members or other board members for workers’ compensation. 

 This step serves as a security measure to ensure the city’s intent and 
decision are clear, since there could be an existing resolution to cover city 
officers dating back as far as 1967 when the law was first amended to 
permit this coverage. Adopting an ordinance will make certain the city’s 
intent is clear, and will supersede any resolution that might have been 
passed. The following sample language is a good starting point: 

Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 9 (6). 

The officers of the City of ____________ elected or appointed for a regular 
term of office shall not be included in the coverage of the Minnesota 
Workers’ Compensation Statute, pursuant to Minn. Stat.  § 176.011, subd. 
9, clause 6. 

 

6. Separate boards and commissions 
Workers’ Compensation 
and Employer’s Liability 
Coverage Document, 
General, Section B. 
 

Agencies that are legally separate from the city, such as the following types 
of boards and commissions, are not automatically covered by the city’s 
LMCIT workers’ compensation coverage:   

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 7 

mailto:bmeyer@lmc.org
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 • Housing and redevelopment authorities 

• Economic development authorities 
• Port authorities 
• Utilities commissions 
• Hospital or nursing home boards 
• Joint powers boards 

Barb Meyer 
LMCIT Underwriter 
651.215.4173 
800.925.1122 
bmeyer@lmc.org 

Cities should consider whether these agencies will have their own workers’ 
compensation coverage or whether these agencies will be part of the city’s 
workers’ compensation coverage. If the city wishes to extend workers’ 
compensation under its own coverage, the city needs to contact its LMCIT 
underwriter and the agency will be specifically listed as included (for a 
joint powers board, at least one party must be an LMCIT member in order 
to extend coverage). 

See also Section II.C.7, City 
volunteers. 
 
 

LMCIT’s workers’ compensation coverage is not available for volunteer 
members of purely advisory city boards or committees (i.e., those that do 
not have legal decision-making authority); however, volunteer members of 
a city advisory board or committee can be covered under LMCIT’s 
volunteer accident coverage, which is an optional coverage available to 
members.   

 
a. Deciding whether boards and commissions should 

have stand-alone coverage  
 In some cases, the city may prefer agencies managed by a separate 

administrative board or commission have workers’ compensation coverage 
separate from the city for a couple reasons:  

LMCIT information memo, 
Experience Rating in 
LMCIT’s Liability and 
Workers’ Compensation 
Premiums. 

• It may be easier to allocate costs between the two budgets. 
• Each operation will stand on its own for purposes of LMCIT’s 

experience modification calculation. For example, with separate 
coverage, losses experienced by employees of the utilities commission 
won’t affect the city’s experience modification, and vice versa. 

 Whether to separate coverage is a decision to be made by the city. A down-
side to separate coverage is the city may lose some benefit of the volume 
discount on premiums. A premium discount applies when the total standard 
premium equals $5,000 or more. 

 
b. Extending coverage to officers of boards and 

commissions 
 In addition to the city determining whether these agencies should be 

covered under the city’s coverage or separately, each individual agency 
also needs to determine whether the officers that are elected or appointed to 
a board or commission will be covered under workers’ compensation.  

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 8 

mailto:bmeyer@lmc.org
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf


RELEVANT LINKS: 
Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 9 (6). 
 
See also Section II.C.5, 
Elected and appointed 
officials. 

Elected and appointed officials are not automatically covered by the 
workers’ compensation statute. However, Minnesota statutes allow the 
extension of workers’ compensation coverage to these officials, but only if 
the agency has passed an ordinance or resolution to that effect. Because 
these types of agencies are separate legal entities, the decision about 
covering officers rests with the agency, even if the agency is included 
under the city’s workers’ compensation coverage. 

 

7. City volunteers 
Workers’ Compensation 
and Employer’s Liability 
Coverage Document, 
General, Section B. 
 
See also Section II.C.5, 
Elected and appointed 
officials. 

City volunteers deliver a range of city services, providing a valuable benefit 
to cities. It’s worthwhile to consider what happens when a volunteer is 
injured. There are various statutory coverages for certain volunteers and 
optional protection through LMCIT that cities can elect to protect 
volunteers. 

 
a. Emergency volunteers 

Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 9. 
 
 

The following types of volunteers are defined by statute as “employees” for 
purposes of workers’ compensation. LMCIT automatically includes these 
volunteers under the city’s workers’ compensation coverage: 

See also Section II.C.8, City 
firefighters. 
 
Minn. Stat. § 12.22, subd 
2a. 

• Volunteer firefighters 
• Volunteer ambulance attendants 
• Volunteer first responders 
• Law enforcement assistance volunteers 
• Emergency management volunteers 
• Disaster assistance volunteers 
• Civil defense volunteers 

 
Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 9. 

These volunteers are entitled to receive workers’ compensation benefits if 
they are injured while performing volunteer services for the city, as long as 
they are registered with and work at the direction and control of the city. (If 
they are organized independently of a city and aren’t an employee for 
purposes of workers’ compensation, they would not be entitled to benefits.) 
If an emergency volunteer sustains an injury that disables them from 
working, in most cases workers’ compensation benefits will be based on 
the wage of paid employees performing similar services.  

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 9 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=12.22
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=12.22
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 

b. Inmates on work release 
Minn. Stat. § 3.739, subd. 
3. 

Inmates of state, regional, or local correctional facilities or county jails may 
be conditionally released and ordered to perform compensated or 
uncompensated work for various types of agencies. If an inmate is injured 
or causes damage in the course of his or her work, cities are precluded from 
being sued. Claims of $500 or less are submitted to the State Department of 
Corrections. Claims over $500 are submitted to the Legislature.   

 
c. Other types of volunteers 

Minn. Stat. § 176.041, 
subd. 1. 
 
See also Section II.C.5, 
Elected and appointed 
officials. 
 
See also Section II.C.6, 
Separate boards and 
commissions. 
 
See also Section II.C.7.a, 
Emergency volunteers. 
 
See also Section II.C.7.b, 
Inmates on work release. 

Volunteers—other than elected and appointed officials, board and 
commission members with some level of independent decision-making 
authority, emergency volunteers, and inmates on work release—are not 
deemed “employees” and therefore not covered by workers’ compensation. 
LMCIT offers premises medical coverage and volunteer accident coverage 
to cities that wish to protect other types of volunteers performing volunteer 
work in the city.   

 
(1) Optional premises medical coverage 

 Cities have the option to purchase premises medical coverage as part of 
their municipal liability coverage. It provides $1,000 in coverage for 
medical expenses resulting from an injury caused by a condition on city 
owned property. This is no-fault coverage, which means the injured person 
receives the benefit without having to show the injury resulted from the 
city’s negligence.  

 In some circumstances, the premises medical coverage might apply to an 
injured volunteer’s medical costs. Exclusions in the premises medical 
coverage, however, will rule out many cases of coverage. For example, 
commonly excluded are injuries that occur while a person is involved in 
maintenance or alteration of property or while participating in athletics. 

 
(2) Optional volunteer accident coverage 

 Cities also have the option to purchase accident coverage for other types of 
volunteers. This coverage automatically covers on a blanket basis almost 
all city volunteers who work under the city’s direction and control. 
Volunteers that can be covered include: 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 10 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=3.739
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=3.739
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.041
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.041


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 • Coaches and instructors in recreation programs. 

• Volunteers working on a city sponsored festival or celebration. 
• Volunteers working on city construction and demolition projects. 
• “Clean-up day” volunteers. 
• Volunteer members of advisory boards or committees that do not 

exercise independent decision-making authority. 
 Coverage protects city volunteers on a no-fault basis. Benefits 

automatically are payable if the injury occurs while the volunteer is 
performing services for the city, regardless of fault. In addition to 
protecting volunteers with injuries not caused by the city’s negligence, 
these benefits can help avoid litigation in cases where the city, a city 
officer, employee, or other volunteer, is or may be at fault. The injured 
volunteer can receive these benefits without getting into an adversarial 
situation against the city. 

 
(a) Benefits  

See also Section II.C.2, 
Employer’s liability. 
 

Accident coverage for volunteers provides protection for people donating 
their time and effort to city projects. If the volunteer’s injuries exceeds the 
benefits paid under this coverage and the injury was due to city negligence, 
the volunteer would still be able to make a tort claim against the city for 
those excess damages. 

 
(i) Disability benefit 

 Coverage includes short-term disability protection. A volunteer who is 
unable to engage in the activities of his or her normal occupation because 
of an injury suffered while performing volunteer services for the city 
receives a disability benefit of $400 per week for up to 26 weeks. 

 
(ii) Impairment benefit 

Minn. Stat. § 176.165.  
 

Coverage includes a lump sum “impairment” benefit for any total or partial 
permanent disability. If a volunteer suffers a permanent impairment or 
disability as a result of an injury suffered while performing volunteer 
services for the city, the volunteer will receive a lump sum payment as 
compensation for that impairment. Payments are based on the percentage of 
disability, which is determined in the same manner used for impairment 
compensation under the workers’ compensation statute. 

 
(iii) Death benefit 

 If a volunteer dies as a result of an injury suffered while performing 
volunteer services for the city, a death benefit of $100,000 is paid to the 
volunteer’s survivors or estate. 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 11 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.165


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 

(iv) Optional benefit 
 The city can add optional coverage of as much as $1,000 for medical costs. 

This limited medical coverage is intended to pick up relatively minor first 
aid costs. On more serious injuries, it could also be applied to the costs that 
the individual would otherwise have to bear under their own health 
coverage’s deductible or co-pay provisions. 

 
(b) Costs for volunteer accident coverage 

 Premiums for volunteer accident coverage are based upon the city’s 
population, which is subject to a minimum and maximum premium. The 
additional cost to add optional medical coverage is a percentage of the 
city’s basic premium. Cities have the option to cover only volunteer board 
and committee members, and not all other city volunteers. There is a per 
volunteer board or committee member charge for this option. 

 
(c) Application for volunteer accident coverage 

Accident Plan for City 
Volunteers Application for 
Coverage. 

To obtain a quote, complete the application at left and return to LMCIT. 

 

8. Firefighters 
Workers’ Compensation 
and Employer’s Liability 
Coverage Document, 
General, Section B. 
 

In general, workers’ compensation for firefighters is the same as workers’ 
compensation for other employees. However, there are some special 
provisions concerning how lost wage benefits are calculated for volunteer 
firefighters, and there are also provisions specifying that certain diseases 
are presumed to be job-related for all firefighters. There are also some 
special issues that arise with regard to when a firefighter is considered to be 
on duty for workers’ compensation purposes when responding to a fire or 
other emergency call. Finally, LMCIT’s workers’ compensation premium 
rating system has some unique features that reflect the unique aspects of 
workers’ compensation for firefighters. 

 
a. Firefighter definition 

See also Section II.C.7.a, 
Emergency volunteers. 
 
Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 9 (3). 
 

Firefighters in Minnesota may be employees or volunteers for a city. 
Volunteer firefighters are defined by statute as “employees” for purposes of 
workers’ compensation and are entitled to receive workers’ compensation 
benefits if they are injured while performing volunteer services for the city 
as long as they are registered with and work at the direction and control of 
the city. LMCIT automatically includes volunteer firefighters, as well as 
fire relief associations, under the city’s workers’ compensation coverage 
and does not charge an additional premium for this exposure.   

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 12 

http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/AccidentPlanForCityVolunteers.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/AccidentPlanForCityVolunteers.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/AccidentPlanForCityVolunteers.docx
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011


RELEVANT LINKS: 

 
b. When coverage applies 

 Injuries sustained while a firefighter is engaged in firefighter activities is 
covered by workers’ compensation. A firefighter is also covered from the 
time they respond to a fire alarm, a pager, or other device until the time 
they return home. Travel from home to the fire hall and directly home again 
is covered in a fire call or other emergency situation. In contrast, travel 
from home to a firefighter meeting, fire drill, or other type of training is not 
covered.  

 If a firefighter does not go straight home from the fire hall after responding 
to a fire call or other emergency, the scope of employment ends at the fire 
hall. For example, if the firefighter went to a bar instead of going home, it 
would be considered a “detour and frolic.” Injuries sustained during a 
“detour and frolic” are not covered by workers’ compensation. A “detour 
and frolic” is not within the scope of employment. 

See also Section II.A, 
Injury definition. 
 
Minn. Stat. § 176.021, 
subd. 9 

It’s also important to note that Minnesota statute excludes workers’ 
compensation coverage for injuries sustained while an employee is 
participating in voluntary recreational programs sponsored by an employer 
such as health promotion programs, athletic events, parties, and picnics. 
This rule applies to all employees, not just firefighters. The courts have 
denied workers’ compensation coverage of injuries that firefighters 
sustained while playing employer-sponsored softball games or while 
voluntarily attending employer-sponsored picnics or dinners. The exception 
to this rule is if an employer requires its firefighters to attend these 
activities—a compensable injury would be covered. 

 
c. Indemnity benefits for volunteer firefighters 

Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 9 (9). 

A volunteer firefighter who is unable to engage in the activities of his or 
her normal occupation because of an injury suffered while performing 
volunteer services for the city may be entitled to indemnity benefits, more 
commonly known as lost time benefits or wage replacement. Following is a 
summary of how indemnity benefits are calculated for a volunteer 
firefighter: 

 • For volunteer firefighters who receive only an “expense 
reimbursement” payment from the city, lost wage benefits are based on 
the greater of either their normal earnings from regular employment, or 
an imputed full-time firefighter wage. 

• For volunteer firefighters who receive a “wage” payment from the city, 
benefits are based on the total of that wage plus the firefighter’s regular 
employment earnings. The firefighter may also have the right to choose 
instead to base benefits on an imputed full-time firefighter wage if that 
would result in a higher benefit. 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 13 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.021
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.021
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 

d. Benefits for heart and lung diseases 
Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 15. 

The workers’ compensation statute establishes statutory presumptions for 
certain heart and lung diseases such as the following. If a firefighter 
contracts one of these diseases, the disease is presumed job-related if 
certain conditions are met: 

 • Myocarditis 
• Coronary sclerosis 
• Pneumonia  
• Many types of cancer 
• Infectious diseases (e.g., AIDS or hepatitis) 

 It is important to understand this does not mean a firefighter is 
automatically entitled to workers’ compensation benefits if they contract 
one of these diseases.  

Minn. Stat. § 176.021, 
subd. 1. 

First, under normal circumstances, a person who claims a disease is job-
related has the burden of proving that his or her job caused the disease in 
order to qualify for workers’ compensation benefits. Under the statutory 
presumption for firefighters that contract heart and/or lung diseases, the 
employer must bear the burden of proof to show the disease was not work-
related. In other words, the diseases will be treated as job-related unless the 
employer can show they resulted from other causes. For example, in the 
case of a heart attack, the employer might try to show the employee was 
overweight, a heavy smoker, had high blood pressure and cholesterol and 
that these conditions, rather than the work of a firefighter, were the cause of 
the heart attack. 

 Second, certain conditions, as outlined below, must be met before these 
presumptions come into play.   

 
(1) Heart and lung disease 

Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 15(b). 

In order for a heart or lung disease to be presumed job-related, the 
employee must have had a physical examination at the time he or she was 
first employed, and a written report of that examination showing that the 
employee was free of the disease. This report must have been filed with the 
fire department. (Police officers also qualify for this presumption.) 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 14 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.021
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.021
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 

(2) Cancer 
Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 15(c). 

For firefighters who entered service before Aug. 1, 1988, a prior 
examination is not required to be entitled to the cancer presumption. 
However, if the firefighter entered service before Aug. 1, 1988, and was 
examined prior to employment, and the exam showed evidence of cancer, 
that cancer is not presumed to be job-related. The law isn’t clear on 
whether a firefighter who entered service on or after Aug. 1, 1988, must 
have had a physical exam in order to receive the presumption. 

 
(3) Infectious diseases 

Minn. Stat. § 176.011, 
subd. 15(b). 

The presumption that an infectious disease is job-related applies only if the 
firefighter was exposed to the disease in the course of performing his or her 
duties. In other words, in order for the firefighter to be entitled to the 
presumption, there would need to be some evidence the firefighter actually 
came into contact with a carrier of the disease and that the nature of the 
contact was such that the disease could have been transmitted. Ordinary 
diseases of life, to which the general public is equally exposed outside of 
employment, such as colds and flu, are generally not covered by workers’ 
compensation. Police officers, EMT’s, ambulance attendants, and any other 
employee whose job involves providing emergency medical care outside of 
a hospital are also covered by this presumption. 

 
e. Non-smoker credit for peace officers and firefighters 

See also Section II.C.8.d, 
Benefits for heart and lung 
diseases. 

If a firefighter or peace officer contracts certain heart and lung diseases, the 
statute says these diseases are presumed to be job-related if certain 
conditions are met. Several of the diseases can be related to smoking. If a 
firefighter or peace officer is a smoker, he or she is more likely than a non-
smoker to contract one of these diseases; and if one of these diseases is 
contracted, there is a good chance it will turn into a workers’ compensation 
claim. The diseases are treated as job-related unless the employer can show 
they resulted from other causes. If the individual was a smoker, his or her 
smoking might be one of the pieces of evidence used to rebut the 
presumption that the disease was job-related, so that workers’ 
compensation benefits would not be payable. But even so, there would 
likely be substantial legal costs involved to litigate the claim. 

 In short, a fire department with very few smokers represents a smaller risk 
of a workers’ compensation claim for heart disease, lung disease, or cancer. 
Any city that can certify that no more than 10 percent of the members of its 
fire or police department are smokers qualifies for a rate that is 10 percent 
lower than LMCIT’s standard rate for firefighters and peace officers.  

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 15 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.011


RELEVANT LINKS: 
Instructions and 
certification of non-
smoking status form. 

To qualify for the credit, the city must obtain written statements from at 
least 90 percent of the members of each department. The statement must be 
signed and dated, and must state that the individual does not smoke and has 
not smoked within the previous six months. These statements, along with a 
roster of current department members, must be submitted to LMCIT in 
order to qualify for the credit.   

 

III. Premium options 
Workers’ Compensation 
and Employer’s Liability 
Coverage Document, Part 
6. 

Cities can tailor their premium options and deductibles in LMCIT’s 
workers’ compensation program.   

 

A. Regular premium option 
 If a city chooses the regular premium option, premium payments are the 

city’s only responsibility or liability. The regular premium option is a 
“fully insured” option. 

 The regular premium option first calculates a member city’s rates based 
upon the city’s payroll, according to payroll class (rates for volunteer 
firefighters are based on the population of the area which the fire 
department serves rather than payroll). The rate is then adjusted by an 
experience modification factor that reflects the city’s previous loss 
experience to set its premium.  

LMCIT information memo, 
Experience Rating in 
LMCIT’s Liability and 
Workers’ Compensation 
Premiums. 

The city’s experience modification factor looks at a city’s claims from the 
oldest three years during a four-year period. The most recent year isn’t part 
of the modification because those claims often are not yet mature. Using an 
experience modification factor is one way LMCIT seeks to maintain 
fairness in setting premiums. 

 

B. Retrospective rating option 
 Cities can choose a retrospective rating option, which is an alternate 

method of determining the premium charge for a city. The city’s final 
premium under this option reflects the city’s own actual loss experience for 
the year. With good experience, this option can save the city significant 
money during the long run. Of course, the city is also subject to possible 
premium increases if it experiences a lot of injuries or a single big loss. 
Cities that use retrospective rating—or would like to—should recognize 
that a strong safety program is an important component of developing good 
loss experience. 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 16 

http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/InstructionsAndCertificationOfNonSmokingStatus.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/InstructionsAndCertificationOfNonSmokingStatus.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/InstructionsAndCertificationOfNonSmokingStatus.docx
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 

1. Eligibility 
 There are three retrospective rating options available to any city whose 

standard premiums are $25,000 or more. The election form is automatically 
sent with the regular premium quotation to qualifying members. A city can 
select only one premium option. If a city selects a deductible option or the 
standard premium option, it cannot select a retrospective rating option. 

 

2. How the retrospective rating option works 
 The city pays a deposit premium (net of discounts) to LMCIT at the 

beginning of the agreement period. The timing and amount of this payment 
are the same whether or not a retrospective rating option is selected. At the 
end of the agreement year, an audit determines the actual payroll for the 
period and the resulting net actual premium. If a retrospective rating option 
is not selected, this becomes the city’s final premium. 

 When a retrospective rating option is selected, the final premium is not 
known until all claim activity from that agreement period ceases 
permanently. The final premium reflects the city’s own losses and is 
subject to minimum and maximum limits. The premium amounts are 
estimated at the beginning of the agreement period, and provided to the city 
prior to the election of an option. The minimum and maximum premiums 
are adjusted after the payroll audit is complete, and reflect the net actual 
premium for the period. 

Minn. Stat. § 176.129. The final premium equals the minimum premium plus actual incurred 
losses and loss-related expenses, including assessments due to the state 
Special Compensation Fund. Unlike typical retrospective plans offered by 
private insurers, LMCIT’s retrospective rating formula doesn’t use a “loss 
conversion factor.” 

 The city is billed or refunded the difference between the net deposit 
premium and the final premium. This is accomplished by annual 
adjustments. 

 
a. Annual adjustments 

 Under the retrospective rating option, final premium amounts are 
determined based on a city’s own losses, which are adjusted throughout the 
coverage term. The first adjustment is made approximately six months after 
the expiration of the agreement period, based on the total incurred cost of 
losses known at that time. Further adjustments are made annually thereafter 
until all claim activity ceases permanently. This includes activity on claims 
that reopen and claims for injuries that are filed later for an accident 
occurring within the retrospective year. 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 17 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.129


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 These adjustments continue as long as any claims remain open or until the 

retrospective year is closed. If a closed claim reopens, or if a new claim is 
filed for an injury from that year, the annual retrospective rating 
adjustments for that coverage year resume unless the retrospective year has 
been closed by the city. 

 
b. Closing past retrospective years 

 LMCIT automatically closes retrospective years after 16 years, unless the 
city specifies that it wants to hold the old retrospective year open. LMCIT 
does this for ease of administration and to help cities avoid surprises for old 
claims that reopen. Cities are notified of the automatic closure and the 
option to hold retrospective years open longer. 

 Cities also have the option to close out retrospective years sooner. 
Beginning five years after the first adjustment is made on a retrospective 
year, cities can close out coverage from previous years. If a city selects this 
option, no further adjustments are made to the city’s premium for the 
selected year(s), regardless of future changes that may occur in the city’s 
paid or incurred losses.  

 There is an additional charge to close a retrospective rated year, which 
varies by age—the longer it is after the coverage year, the lower the charge 
to close it. Cities may elect to close older years by sending a written request 
to LMCIT. The request must be made within 60 days following its annual 
workers’ compensation retrospective adjustment invoice letter. A city can 
choose to close all, some, or none of its retrospective rated policies that are 
five years old or more. 

Minn. Stat. § 176.129. 

*This is the number of years after the first retrospective adjustment is made for 
the retro year.  
**This is the percentage applied to the city’s incurred losses for that year to 
determine the cost of closing out that year. Special compensation fund 
assessments are included when calculating incurred losses. 

Close-Out Charges 
Years* Charge**  Years* Charge** 

5 29% 11 14% 
6 27% 12 10% 
7 25% 13 9% 
8 22% 14 7% 
9 20% 15 5% 
10 17% 16 0 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 18 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.129


RELEVANT LINKS: 
Barb Meyer 
LMCIT Underwriter  
651.215.4173 
800.925.1122 
bmeyer@lmc.org  

To close out a retrospective rating or to learn what your city’s close-out 
charges would be, please contact LMCIT. 

 
(1) Advantages of closing past retrospective years 

 There are a couple reasons why a city might want to close past 
retrospective years. First, it eliminates some uncertainty by eliminating the 
risk the city could incur additional charges because a claim from an old 
injury has reopened or has turned out to be much more serious than 
previously expected. Second, it eliminates some accounting and record 
keeping for the city, since the city will no longer receive annual 
adjustments on each of those old years. 

 
(2) Disadvantages of closing past retrospective years 

 One obvious disadvantage is there is a cost to the city to close past 
retrospective years, at least up until 16 years out. Another potential 
disadvantage is that closing an old year also eliminates the possibility of 
receiving money back in a future adjustment in situations where a claim 
from that year closes for less than the amount for which it was reserved. In 
addition, if a city already hit the maximum premium on an old retrospective 
rated year, there’s no advantage to the city to close that year out since 
there’s no longer any risk that costs for that year will increase. 

 

3. Effect on experience modification factor 
LMCIT information memo, 
Experience Rating in 
LMCIT’s Liability and 
Workers’ Compensation 
Premiums. 

Retrospective rating options do not replace the experience modification 
factor. The experience modification factor is separate from, and in addition 
to, any retrospective rating adjustments. Whether or not the city is on a 
retrospective does not affect the experience modification calculation. 

 The experience modification factor does adjust the premium to reflect a 
city’s loss experience, but it is done in a calculation using several years’ 
worth of data. Not only is the retrospective rating adjustment a more 
immediate reaction to loss experience, but it also can potentially offer 
larger reductions or additions to the premium. 

 

4. Loss control 
LMC information memo, 
Conducting a Job Hazard 
Analysis: A Proactive 
Approach to Safety. 
 
LMC information memo, 
Employee Safety Training: 
Building on a Firm 
Foundation. 

For cities that choose the retrospective rating option, it is always in the best 
interest of the city to use LMCIT’s safety and loss control services. 
Reducing losses and creating a safer working environment not only 
decreases the city’s experience modification factor, but it also helps lower 
the overall rates for all cities. Under the retrospective rating option, this 
becomes even more important. There’s no additional charge to the city for 
most loss control services. 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 19 

mailto:bmeyer@lmc.org
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/conductingajobhazardanalysis.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/conductingajobhazardanalysis.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/conductingajobhazardanalysis.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/employeesafetytraining.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/employeesafetytraining.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/employeesafetytraining.pdf


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 

5. Deciding whether to choose a retrospective rating 
option 

 To decide if a retrospective plan makes sense, one good way is to look at 
the city’s losses from the past few years to see how it would have done 
under the plan. There are some important points to keep in mind, though, 
including the following: 

LMCIT information memo, 
Experience Rating in 
LMCIT’s Liability and 
Workers’ Compensation 
Premiums. 

• Workers’ compensation losses can develop adversely. Loss experience 
that initially looks good can become more expensive by the time those 
losses are finally closed in the future. 

• Cities should consider whether they are comfortable trading off cost 
certainty for potential savings. In addition, in light of the city’s loss 
history and safety programs, cities should consider whether they are 
confident that employee injuries will be kept down enough to save 
money in the coming year. 

• In any one year, a city’s losses could turn out to be very different 
from—and possibly much greater than—the pattern for past years. 

• A single large loss during the year could be enough to push the city to 
the maximum premium. Claims from prior years sometimes reopen or 
increase in cost, which means the city can owe additional amounts for 
prior years. When retaining risk through the retrospective option, a city 
should have a plan for where funds will come from to cover the city’s 
potential obligations according to the retrospective. 

• Unlike the way the experience modification formula works, large losses 
are not discounted for purposes of the retrospective rating formula. 

 Cities that use a retrospective should review their decision on an annual 
basis to ensure it makes sense. A prime opportunity to review a 
retrospective is when the city receives the annual adjustment bill or refund. 
This typically occurs about six months after the city’s expiration date on its 
coverage. 

 The adjustment mailing includes supporting loss and premium data 
members will need in order to decide how to go forward with the upcoming 
coverage renewal. It’s especially important during the first year of using a 
retrospective to look at the city’s current-year losses after 10 months to see 
how the city is doing, and whether to continue with the retrospective at 
renewal. 

 

C. Deductible option 
 LMCIT offers several deductible options to member cities of the workers’ 

compensation program.  

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 20 

http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 

1. Eligibility 
See also Section III.B, 
Retrospective rating 
options. 

All cities who participate in the LMCIT workers’ compensation program 
are eligible. The deductible options give smaller cities—those whose 
standard premiums are less than $25,000 and who are not eligible for a 
retrospective rated option—a way to reduce their premium costs by 
retaining some risk. The deductible approach may also be an attractive 
alternative for larger cities who feel the retrospective rated premium option 
is too risky for their situation. A city can select only one premium option. If 
a city selects a retrospective rated option or the standard premium option, it 
cannot also select a deductible.  

 

2. How the deductible options work 
 Under a deductible option, the city pays a lower premium in return for 

agreeing to reimburse LMCIT for paid medical losses up to the deductible. 
If the city selects a deductible option, the deductible applies per occurrence 
to medical costs only. 

 The deductible options and the premium credits for each option are: 
 Deductible Premium Credit 

$250 1.2% 

$500 2.1% 

$1,000 3.5% 

$2,500 6.0% 

$5,000 9.0% 

$10,000 13.5% 

$25,000 20.5% 

$50,000 27.0% 
 

 The city pays a deposit premium (net of discounts) to LMCIT. If the city 
chooses a deductible option, the standard premium is reduced by the 
percentage shown above. This does not affect the premium volume 
discount (premium discounts are applied when a city’s total standard 
premium equals $5,000 or more), which is also based upon standard 
premium.  

 As claims are submitted and medical costs incurred, LMCIT will pay the 
medical vendors directly. A city that chooses a deductible option is billed 
for medical costs paid up to its per occurrence deductible. Each occurrence 
has its own deductible. 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 21 



RELEVANT LINKS: 
Barb Meyer 
LMCIT Underwriter 
651.215.4173 
800.925.1122 
bmeyer@lmc.org 

If you have questions regarding the payment or timing of deductible 
billings, receiving the deductible quote, where to send it, whether it has 
been received, or the payroll audit, please contact LMCIT. 

 

3. Effect on the experience modification factor 
LMCIT information memo, 
Experience Rating in 
LMCIT’s Liability and 
Workers’ Compensation 
Premiums. 

The selection of a deductible option does not affect the experience 
modification factor. The total amount of the claim will be used for 
calculating the experience modification factor. The experience modification 
factor would be the same regardless of choice of a deductible option. 

 The potential savings of the deductible option would be the percentage 
discount shown in the quote compared to actual medical deductibles for 
which the city must reimburse LMCIT. 

 

4. Loss control 
LMC information memo, 
Conducting a Job Hazard 
Analysis: A Proactive 
Approach to Safety. 
 
LMC information memo, 
Employee Safety Training: 
Building on a Firm 
Foundation. 

It is always in the city’s interest to use LMCIT’s safety and loss control 
services. Reducing losses saves the city money by lowering its experience 
modification factor; it creates a safer working environment for employees; 
and it helps lower overall rates for all member cities. Under a deductible 
option, the city stands to benefit even more by successfully avoiding and 
controlling losses. There’s no additional charge to the city for most loss 
control services. 

 

5. Deciding whether to choose a deductible option 
 It is the city’s decision whether or not to select a deductible option. In 

making this decision, it can be helpful to look at the city’s loss history to 
see how it would have done in past years under a deductible plan. There are 
some points to keep in mind, though, including the following: 

 • A city’s loss experience will vary from year to year. Any one year’s 
losses could turn out to be very different from—and perhaps much 
greater than—the pattern of past years. 

• There’s no theoretical “worst case maximum cost” under a deductible 
plan. Since the deductible applies to each occurrence, the maximum 
cost to the city depends on how many occurrences it has that year. 

 A deductible option can be a good way for the city to save money, but a 
deductible means that the city is retaining risk. Cities that use a deductible 
option need to consider how they will fund that risk. The deductibles apply 
per occurrence, and cities need to be prepared for the possibility they may 
have multiple occurrences during a year. So, depending on what losses 
happen to occur, it can also turn out to be more expensive for the city. 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 22 

mailto:bmeyer@lmc.org
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/experienceratinginpremiums.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/conductingajobhazardanalysis.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/conductingajobhazardanalysis.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/conductingajobhazardanalysis.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/employeesafetytraining.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/employeesafetytraining.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/employeesafetytraining.pdf


RELEVANT LINKS: 
 

IV. Filing a workers’ compensation claim 
Minn. Stat. § 176.141. 
 
 

A workers’ compensation claim begins with the reporting process. To 
initiate the reporting process, employees report a workers’ compensation 
claim to the employer. Under the workers’ compensation statute, the 
employee has 180 days to report his or her claim.  

Minn. Stat. § 176.231, 
subd. 1. 
 
 

Once the employer is notified of the employee’s injury, the employer must 
complete and file the state-required First Report of Injury (FROI) form to 
LMCIT within 10 days after knowledge of the injury. Do not wait for 
medical reports, the Employee Incident Report, or the Supervisor’s Report 
of Accident to submit the claim if waiting would take more than one day.   

Minn. Stat. § 176.231, 
subd. 1. 
 

Given a death or serious injury, the information must be received by 
LMCIT within 24 hours so that it can be submitted to the Department of 
Labor and Industry within its 48-hour deadline. 

Minn. Stat. § 176.231, 
subd. 10. 
 

Failure to submit a claim within these timeframes may result in a late 
penalty assessment by the Department of Labor and Industry. Directions 
for completing the FROI are noted on the back of the form. LMCIT is 
available to assist in completing it. 

Minn. Stat. § 176.231, 
subd. 2. 
 
Minnesota Workers’ 
Compensation System 
Employee Information 
Sheet. 

State Law requires the employee be given a copy of the FROI and the 
Minnesota Workers’ Compensation System Employee Information Sheet. 

 Claims can be submitted to LMCIT using any of the following methods.  
See LMC website-Submit a 
claim online. • Online: Members with a username and password can submit claims 

online. To obtain a username and password, contact LMCIT. 
See LMC website-Claim 
Forms. 
Email: claims@lmc.org 

• Email: Submit the FROI form by email.   

Fax: 651.281.1297 or 
888.234.7839 • Fax: Submit the FROI form by fax.   

Mail: 145 University Ave 
W, St. Paul MN 55103-
2044 

• Mail: Submit the FROI by mail.   

Phone: 651.281.1200 or 
800.925.1122 • Phone: Call LMCIT to file a claim. 

 
 

League of Minnesota Cities Information Memo:   10/31/2014  
LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide  Page 23 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.141
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.231
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.231
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.231
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.231
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.231
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=176.231
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes?id=176.231&year=2013&keyword_type=exact&keyword=First+Report+of+Injury
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes?id=176.231&year=2013&keyword_type=exact&keyword=First+Report+of+Injury
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/work_compemployeeinformationsheet.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/work_compemployeeinformationsheet.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/work_compemployeeinformationsheet.pdf
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/work_compemployeeinformationsheet.pdf
http://lmc.org/page/1/online-claim-login.jsp
http://lmc.org/page/1/online-claim-login.jsp
http://www.lmc.org/page/1/ClaimsForms.jsp
http://www.lmc.org/page/1/ClaimsForms.jsp
mailto:claims@lmc.org


  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7C 

Agenda Date: 01-07-15 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Resolution 01-15 Appointments and Assignments for 2015 
 
Summary: This is a routine resolution that the council approves in January each year. No changes have been made to 
the assignments. The Planning Commissioner term dates on the resolution will be updated when new appointments are 
made in March. 

Council Action: Required. Potential motions … 
 

1. I move the council approves resolution 01-15 designating appointments and assignments for 2015. 
 

2. I move the council approves resolution 01-15 designating appointments and assignments for 2015, with the 
following revision(s): ___________. 

 
3. Other motion ??? 







 

Resolution 01-15 
City of Greenwood Appointments & Assignments for 2015 

 
Be it resolved that the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota approves the following appointments for 01-07-15 through 01-05-16. 

  
  

OFFICE & DESIGNATIONS 2014 HOLDER 2015 HOLDER 
Mayor Pro-Tem Bob Quam Bob Quam 
Administrative Committee Tom Fletcher, Deb Kind Tom Fletcher, Deb Kind 
Animal Enforcement Officer South Lake Police Department South Lake Police Department 
Assessor Hennepin County Hennepin County 
Attorney Mark Kelly Mark Kelly 
Auditor CliftonLarsonAllen CliftonLarsonAllen 
Bank Signatures Kind, Quam, Courtney Kind, Quam, Courtney 
Building Official Bob Manor Bob Manor 
Clerk Gus Karpas Gus Karpas 
Depositories Bridgewater Bank, Beacon Bank Bridgewater Bank, Beacon Bank 
Engineer Bolton & Menk (Dave Martini) Bolton & Menk (Dave Martini) 

Fire Board Representative – 4th Wed (Jan, Mar, May, Jul, Sep, Nov) Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam (alt.), 
Bill Cook (2nd alt.) 

Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam (alt.), 
Bill Cook (2nd alt.) 

Forester / Tree Inspector Manuel Jordan  Manuel Jordan  
Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission (LMCC) Representative 
2 representatives, 1 must be elected official, meets 3rd Thurs (F, M, A, M, Jun, A, O, N) 

Tom Fletcher, Deb Kind, 
Rob Roy (alternate) 

Tom Fletcher, Deb Kind, 
Rob Roy (alternate) 

Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) Rep – 2nd and 4th Wed Rob Roy (1/31/17)  Rob Roy (1/31/17)  
Marina Clerk Gus Karpas Gus Karpas 
Minnetonka Community Education (MCE) Representative – 4th Mon  Bob Quam Bob Quam 
Newspapers Sun-Sailor, Star Tribune (alternate) Sun-Sailor, Star Tribune (alternate) 

Planning Commissioners – 3rd Wed 
 

A-1 Douglas Reeder (8/11-3/16) A-1 Douglas Reeder (8/11-3/16) 
A-2 Lake Bechtell (5/14-3/16) A-2 Lake Bechtell (5/14-3/16) 
A-3 Dave Paeper (3/07-3/16) A-3 Dave Paeper (3/07-3/16) 
B-1 Pat Lucking (2/01-3/15) B-1 Pat Lucking (2/01-3/15) 
B-2 Kristi Conrad (10/11-3/15) B-2 Kristi Conrad (10/11-3/15) 
Alt-1 Rick Sundberg (7/14-3/16) Alt-1 Rick Sundberg (7/14-3/16) 
Alt-2 Fiona Sayer (8/14-3/15) Alt-2 Fiona Sayer (8/14-3/15) 
Alt-3 Bill Cook (5/14-3/15) Alt-3 Bill Cook (5/14-3/15) 

Planning Commission Liaison – 3rd Wed Bill Cook Bill Cook 
Public Safety City Administrator Committee Representative (police & fire) 
(polic/fireuarterly) 

Dana Young Dana Young 
Prosecutor Greg Keller Greg Keller 
Responsible Authority (Govt. Data Practices Act) Gus Karpas Gus Karpas 
Road and Sewer Liaison Bob Quam Bob Quam 
South Lake Minnetonka Police Department (SLMPD) Coordinating 
Committee Representative (Must be mayor, meets quarterly) Deb Kind, Bob Quam (alternate) Deb Kind, Bob Quam (alternate) 

Treasurer Mary Courtney Mary Courtney 
Utility Billing Clerk Deborah Hicks Deborah Hicks 
Weed Inspector (Must be mayor), Assistant Weed Inspector Deb Kind, Assistant Gus Karpas Deb Kind, Assistant Gus Karpas 
Zoning Administrator Gus Karpas Gus Karpas 
  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA that any and all commissioners, appointees, 
representatives, delegates, or other non-elected officials of the city shall hold their official status or membership on a basis subject to resolution, 
subject to reconsideration, and/or removal at the insistence of the city council. This resolution is enacted pursuant to the codes of the city. 
 

ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this 7th day of January 2015. 
 

There were ___ AYES and ___ NAYS 
 

By: _____________________________________    Attest: _____________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor, City of Greenwood  Gus E. Karpas, City Clerk, City of Greenwood 

 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 9A-E 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Council Reports 
 
Summary: This is an opportunity for each council member to present updates and get input regarding various council 
assignments and projects. Related documents may be attached to this cover sheet. 
 
Council Action: None required.  

 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: FYI 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: FYI Items in Council Packet 
  
Summary: The attached items are included in the council packet for your information (FYI) only. FYI items typically 
include planning commission minutes, ViBES (Violations Bureau Electronic System) report of traffic citations processed by 
Hennepin County District Court, monthly report of activity on the Greenwood website, and other items of interest to the 
council. 
  
Council Action: No council action is needed for FYI items. 









From: Teresa Pendleton tmpendleton@mediacombb.net
Subject: FW: Metropolitan Council Meter Station M416 Project Information

Date: December 9, 2014 at 8:26 AM
To: Debra Kind dkind100@gmail.com
Cc: Gus Karpas guskarpas@mchsi.com

Good$Morning$Deb$and$Gus$–$This$is$from$the$Met$Council.$$Did$you$know$about$this$already?
$
Teresa
$
Teresa Pendleton
City of Deephaven
20225 Cottagewood Road
Deephaven, MN  55331
 
Direct phone    952.358.9935
Fax                     952.474.1274
City Hall            952.474.4755 
 
tmpendleton@mediacombb.net
 
 
 
$
From: Kaitlin Peterson [mailto:kapeterson@sehinc.com] 
Sent: Monday, December 08, 2014 4:13 PM
To: tmpendleton@mediacombb.net
Cc: Jeny.Shah@metc.state.mn.us
Subject: Metropolitan Council Meter Station M416 Project Information
 
Dear Ms. Teresa Pendleton: 

MetCoucil (MCES) is in the process of design for rehabilitation of the existing meter structure M416 located at
5290 Manor Rd., northeast of the intersection of Channel Dr. and Manor Road. I am writing to discuss the
proposed rehabilitation project and its impacts on the site. 

The existing MCES Meter Station M416 is to be rehabilitated due to the age of the meter.  The construction
footprint for rehabilitation is approximately 1,396 square feet (0.03 acres) and will include some excavation,
laying temporary conveyance piping, adding a drain pipe and restoration of landscaping, turf and pavement
after the completion of the project.  The drain pipe is proposed to be placed from Meter M416 to the city
sewer manhole MH501 and the excavation depth required for the drain pipe is approximately 10-feet.  The
existing wood fence to the northeast of Meter M416 will be removed during construction and put back into
place once construction is complete.  The construction limits at the site are within the city right-of-way (ROW)
and a portion of the lift station and power controls area.  The existing site layout, restoration, plan and profile
and traffic control sheets are attached for your reference.  Please review the attached sheets and let me
know if you have any comments. 

Below are some questions regarding the City of Greenwood requirements for construction at the meter
station site: 

1.        Are any city permits necessary for the project? 
a.        The City of Greenwood sewer permit may be applicable. 

2.        Coordination 

mailto:Pendletontmpendleton@mediacombb.net
mailto:Pendletontmpendleton@mediacombb.net
mailto:Kinddkind100@gmail.com
mailto:Kinddkind100@gmail.com
mailto:Karpasguskarpas@mchsi.com
mailto:Karpasguskarpas@mchsi.com
mailto:tmpendleton@mediacombb.net
mailto:kapeterson@sehinc.com
mailto:tmpendleton@mediacombb.net
mailto:Jeny.Shah@metc.state.mn.us


2.        Coordination 
a.        Would the city like MCES to coordinate neighborhood meetings, mailings, etc. to inform residents of
the project? 
b.        Should project information be included on the city website? 
c.        Who should be listed as the city contact for the site? 
d.        Are there specific city approved hours for construction at the site? 
i.        This could include approved working hours for the week, weekend and holidays. 
e.        Are any city projects near the area of the project site scheduled for construction during the meter
station anticipated construction schedule? 

Construction for the rehabilitation of the meter station is anticipated to start in the summer of 2015.  Since this
is a multiple meter site project, a more detailed construction schedule will be provided once the project has
been awarded to the Contractor. 

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns regarding this project and would like to meet in
person to discuss them in detail.  Jeny Shah with MCES is the project manager and will be carbon copied on
the e-mail as well. 

Thank you for your time, 

Kaitlin Peterson  |  Project Engineer  
SEH  |  3535 Vadnais Center Drive  |  St. Paul, MN 55110
651.765.2938 direct  |  888.908.8166 fax
www.sehinc.com
SEH - Building a Better World for All of Us™

www.sehinc.com


VERTICAL BENCHMARK TABLE

BM #

BM500

ELEVATION

939.98

DESCRIPTION

HYD-TNH

HORIZONTAL CONTROL POINT TABLE

POINT #

800

900

5078

5083

5086

NORTHING

142460.68

142486.05

142621.71

142460.91

142536.91

EASTING

458470.14

458505.06

458340.19

458402.54

458521.51

DESCRIPTION

METAL SPIKE IN GROUND

METAL SPIKE IN GROUND

1/2" IP WITH RLS CAP

METAL SPIKE IN GROUND

METAL SPIKE IN GROUND

1

XC

XC

TUG

TU
G

TU
G

G

EOH

EOH

EOH

EOH
EOH EOH EOH EOH

TUG
TUG TUG TUG

TUG
TUG

TUG
TUG

W W

EO
H

EO
H

EO
H

EO
H

TUG TUG
TUG TUG TUG TUG TUG

TUG
TUG

G
G G G

G
G

G
G

>>

>

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

MANOR RD

C
H

AN
N

EL D
R

8" CIP FM

MH 501

METER STATION M416

8" SAN

8" SAN

12" CMP STM

9" SAN

MH 502

R
O

W

R
O

W

ROW

ROW

WOOD FENCE

6-GW-649

LIFT STATION L47

GENERATOR

POWER CONTROL PANEL

RTU CABINET

LIFT STATION L47 CONTROL PANEL

ELECTRICAL CABINET

LOAD BANK CABINET

CONSTRUCTION LIMITS

3535 VADNAIS CENTER DRIVE
ST. PAUL, MINNESOTA  55110

 

S
:\K

O
\M

\M
C

E
S

\1
29

09
0\

5-
FI

N
A

L-
D

S
G

N
\5

1-
C

O
N

S
T-

D
W

G
S

-C
A

D
\8

5-
H

E
A

V
Y

C
IV

IL
\8

05
63

2-
M

E
TE

R
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
TS

 - 
P

H
A

S
E

 3
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
S

05
00

01
.D

W
G

0 10 2010

SCALE IN FEET

GENERAL NOTES:

1. TOPOGRAPHIC BASE MAP PREPARED FROM
CERTIFIED LAND SURVEY BY STONEBROOKE
ENGINEERING INC OF BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA IN
2014.

2. HORIZONTAL CONTROL DATUM IS ENGLISH BASED
ON HENNEPIN COUNTY COORDINATE SYSTEM
WHICH IS RELATED TO THE MINNESOTA STATE
PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM NAD 1983 (HARN
2011) ADJUSTMENT.

3. VERTICAL DATUM IS ENGLISH BASED ON NAVD
1988.

LEGEND

HORIZONTAL CONTROL POINT800

CONTROL POINT #

BM500
VERTICAL BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK #

KEYNOTES:

1. CONTROL POINT 5078 IS LOCATED 160.80' NORTH
AND 62.36' WEST OF CONTROL POINT 5083.



XC

XC

MANOR RD

EX LIFT STATION L47

EX METER STATION M416

EX MH 502

R
O

W

R
O

W

ROW

ROW

EX GENERATOR

EX POWER CONTROL PANEL

EX RTU CABINET

EX LIFT STATION L47 CONTROL PANEL

XS

XS

0+00

0+50

0+69

C
H

AN
N

EL D
R

EX MH 501

CONSTRUCTION LIMITS

2

1 5

3

3

4

1

3535 VADNAIS CENTER DRIVE
ST. PAUL, MINNESOTA  55110

 

S
:\K

O
\M

\M
C

E
S

\1
29

09
0\

5-
FI

N
A

L-
D

S
G

N
\5

1-
C

O
N

S
T-

D
W

G
S

-C
A

D
\8

5-
H

E
A

V
Y

C
IV

IL
\8

05
63

2-
M

E
TE

R
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
TS

 - 
P

H
A

S
E

 3
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
S

05
00

02
.D

W
G

0 10 2010

SCALE IN FEET

2
CS2

GENERAL NOTES:

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL ROUGH GRADE SITE TO
MATCH EXISTING GRADES PRIOR TO PLACEMENT
OF TOPSOIL AND SOD.

2. OBTAIN APPROVAL BY CAR OF ROUGH GRADING
PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF TOPSOIL.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT AND MAINTAIN
EROSION CONTROL MEASURES DAILY.

KEYNOTES:

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL RESTORE ALL DISTURBED
TURF WITHIN CONSTRUCTION LIMITS WITH SOD
(MNDOT SPEC 3878.2A).  ALL DISTURBED AREAS
OUTSIDE OF CONSTRUCTION LIMITS SHALL BE
RESTORED BY CONTRACTOR AT NO COST TO THE
OWNER USING SPECIFIED TURF SECTION (UNO).

2. PROVIDE PAVEMENT TO CLEAN SAWCUT.
USE INSET A.

3. ADJUST CASTING.

4. INSTALL SALVAGED WOOD FENCE.

5. RESTORE EDGING, ROCKS AND TURF.

2
CS1

XS

SURFACE WATER FLOW DIRECTION

BIOROLL DITCH CHECK

SILT FENCE (MNDOT SPEC 3886)
(STANDARD MACHINE SLICED
WITHIN ROW)

RESTORE LANDSCAPING AND TURF

RESTORE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

LEGEND

4
CS1



XC

XC

TUG

TU
G

TU
G

G

EOH

EOH

EOH

EOH
EOH EOH EOH EOH

TUG
TUG TUG TUG

TUG
TUG

TUG
TUG

W W

EO
H

EO
H

EO
H

EO
H

TUG TUG
TUG TUG TUG TUG TUG

TUG
TUG

G
G G G

G
G

G
G

>>

>

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

0+00

0+50

0+69

MANOR RD

C
H

AN
N

EL D
R

EX 8" CIP FM

EX LIFT STATION L47

EX METER STATION M416

EX 8" SAN

EX 8" SAN

EX 9" SAN

EX MH 502

R
O

W

R
O

W

ROW

ROW

EX GENERATOR

EX POWER CONTROL PANEL
EX RTU CABINET
EX LIFT STATION L47 CONTROL PANEL

1
CU5.2

>

1
CU5.1 EX 12" CMP STM

4

3

5

2

EX MH 501

16

880

890

900

910

920

930

940

950

960

880

890

900

910

920

930

940

950

960

-0+20 -0+10 0+00 0+10 0+20 0+30 0+40 0+50 0+60 0+70 0+80 0+90

 E
X

 M
E

TE
R

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 M

41
6

R
IM

 9
37

.1
0

IN
V

 N
E

 9
28

.8
9

IN
V

 S
W

 9
28

.8
9

 E
X

 L
IF

T 
S

TA
TI

O
N

 L
47

R
IM

 9
37

.5
0

IN
V

 S
W

 9
28

.8
9

CL  EX METER STATION M416

CL  EX LIFT STATION L47
EX GRADE
OVER PIPE

EX 8" CIP FM

XC

XC

XC

XC

TU
G

TUG

TUG

G

G

G

EO
H

EO
H

EO
H

EO
H

FM

FM

FM

FM

C
H

AN
N

EL D
R

EX 8" SAN

EX METER
STATION 416

EX LIFT STATION L47

EX 8" C
IP FM

EX MH 501

7

10

8

9

CONSTRUCTION
LIMITS

3535 VADNAIS CENTER DRIVE
ST. PAUL, MINNESOTA  55110

 

S
:\K

O
\M

\M
C

E
S

\1
29

09
0\

5-
FI

N
A

L-
D

S
G

N
\5

1-
C

O
N

S
T-

D
W

G
S

-C
A

D
\8

5-
H

E
A

V
Y

C
IV

IL
\8

05
63

2-
M

E
TE

R
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
TS

 - 
P

H
A

S
E

 3
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
U

05
00

01
.D

W
G

FULL SIZE SCALE:
1"=10' HORIZONTAL
1"=10' VERTICAL

0 10 2010

SCALE IN FEET

KEYNOTES:

1. CORE DRILL AND SEAL AT 4" PVC INV EL 919.15.

2. SEE SHEET EP5.1 FOR ELECTRICAL DETAILS.

3. PROVIDE 4" PVC SDR26 DRAIN FROM METER
STRUCTURE TO EX MH 501.  1% MINIMUM PIPE
SLOPE.  CONTRACTOR SHALL USE CLEAR ROCK
BEDDING WRAPPED IN TYPE 4 GEOTEXTILE
MNDOT 3733.  BEDDING SHALL EXTEND TO
TRENCH LIMITS 18" BELOW AND 12" ABOVE PIPE.

4. PROVIDE 4" PVC SDR26 45° BEND.

5. CORE DRILL AND SEAL AT 4" PVC INV EL 919.40.

6. PROVIDE P-TRAP AND MODULAR WALL
PENETRATION SEAL IN EX MH 501.

7. WET TAP AND LINE STOP 8" CIP FM.

8. PROVIDE DIP TEMPORARY CONVEYANCE PIPES
(2).  PIPES SHALL BE BURIED UNDER ROADWAY
AND PLACED ON GROUND WHILE NOT IN
ROADWAY.  PROVIDE 4" THICK BITUMINOUS
PATCH.  REMOVE PIPES AND PROVIDE
PERMANENT BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT PER SHEET
CS5.2.

9. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TEMPORARY
SUBMERSIBLE PUMPS TO CONVEY FLOW FROM
EX LIFT STATION L47 WET WELL TO WET TAP.

10. ENSURE THAT EX METER STATION M416 IS FREE
OF WATER DURING MAGNETIC FLOW METER
INSTALLATION.

GENERAL NOTES:

1. WORK TO BE PERFORMED WHILE TEMPORARY
CONVEYANCE IS ACTIVE.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TEMPORARY
CONVEYANCE FOR ALL CONNECTIONS TO EX
PIPING.

3. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE GROUND SUPPORT
SYSTEM.  GROUND SUPPORT SYSTEM SHALL BE
±9' IN DEPTH.  SEE SECTION 02315.

4. SEE SECTION 01569 FOR TEMPORARY
CONVEYANCE REQUIREMENTS.

0

SCALE IN FEET

5 10

TEMPORARY CONVEYANCE PLAN
CU5.1

1

6"

CORE DRILL AT 4" PVC

MODULAR MECHANICAL
WALL PENETRATION SEAL

4" PVC SDR26 DRAIN
FROM METER STRUCTURE

COMPACTED BACKFILL

4" PVC SDR26 90° BEND
SOLVENT WELD

4" PVC SDR26 P-TRAP
SOLVENT WELD

EX MH WALL

PROVIDE SST SUPPORT PER
SECTION 05500

5
CU1

P-TRAP
CU5.1

2

2
CU5.1



XC

XC

MANOR RD

C
H

AN
N

EL D
R

R
O

W

R
O

W

ROW

ROW

 

S
:\K

O
\M

\M
C

E
S

\1
29

09
0\

5-
FI

N
A

L-
D

S
G

N
\5

1-
C

O
N

S
T-

D
W

G
S

-C
A

D
\8

5-
H

E
A

V
Y

C
IV

IL
\8

05
63

2-
M

E
TE

R
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
TS

 - 
P

H
A

S
E

 3
\S

H
E

E
TS

\C
T0

50
00

1.
D

W
G

0 10 2010

SCALE IN FEET

LEGEND

DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC

TYPE III BARRICADE =

DRUM-LIKE CHANNELIZER =

PORTABLE CONCRETE BARRIER

TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGN
(SHOWN FACING LEFT)

GENERAL NOTES:

1. ACCESS TO ALL DRIVEWAY ENTRANCES
ALONG CHANNEL DR AND MANOR RD SHALL
BE MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES.

2. THE PLACEMENT OF PORTABLE CONCRETE
BARRIER SHALL FOLLOW THE GUIDELINES OF
FIGURE 6F-9 OF THE CURRENT MN MUTCD.

3. PROVIDE TRAFFIC CONTROL IN ACCORDANCE
WITH SECTION 01500.

WLA

T3R

W
LA

W
21

-7

WLA

W
LA

T3
L

W
LA

WLA

W21-7

W
LA

W
21-7

PLACE TRAFFIC CONTROL
SIGN NORTH OF OAK LANE

PLACE TRAFFIC CONTROL
SIGN SOUTH OF
ST ALBANS GREEN

MAINTAIN A
22' ROADWAY



Variance with Variance with Bulk Email
Month 2013 2014 Prior Month Prior Year List
January 3,038 3,876 -39 838 143
February 3,252 3943 67 691 147
March 3,936 4,057 114 121 147
April 4,478 4,170 114 -308 151
May 4,229 4,468 298 239 152
June 3,613 5,291 823 1,678 153
July 3,924 5,579 288 1,655 159
August 3,894 4,922 -657 1,028 162
September 3,395 4,723 -199 1,328 164
October 3,731 3,969 -754 238 164
November 4,543 3,878 -92 -666 164
December 3,915 3,786 -92 -129 165

AVERAGE 3,829 4,388

Mar & Dec numbes are estimates

POPULATION: 693
EMAIL ADDRESSES % OF POPULATION: 23.81%

0 

1,000 

2,000 

3,000 

4,000 

5,000 

6,000 

City	  of	  Greenwood	  
Website	  Total	  Hits	  

2013 

2014 



Content Tools Data Center Site Management Security

Welcome, Debra Kind | Hide QuickTips | Help | Logout

Live Site

Get Report

Site Statistics
Use this reporting tool to see your site statistics for your public site for this month or the
previous month. Statistics for the Administration (or "admin") side of your site are not
included in this report. Additionally, visits you make to your own site while administering it
are not included in these statistics. All data collected before the previous month has been
purged from our system and is not available for use; therefore, we recommend printing
this report each month for your records.

The first report - Page Views by Section - shows total page views for each section. The
second report - Unique Visitors by Section - shows the total page views for each section
without the return visitors (showing only views from unique IP addresses). For example, if
you browse to a page today, and then browse to that same page tomorrow, your viewing
of that page would only be counted once in the unique (second) report. 

Each report lists sections in page view order (highest number of page views first) and only
lists sections that have had traffic within the reporting period. It does not list those
sections without traffic.

Begin Date 11/15/2014

End Date 12/15/2014

Report Name Page Views (Default)

Page Views by Section

Section Page Views Percent of Total
Default Home Page 2122 56.05%

Agendas, Etc. 190 5.02%

City Departments 145 3.83%

Planning Commission 137 3.62%

Garbage & Recycling 102 2.69%

Mayor & City Council 94 2.48%

Forms & Permits 78 2.06%

RFPs & Bids 62 1.64%

Welcome to Greenwood 60 1.58%

Comp Plan & Maps 53 1.4%

Assessments & Taxes 52 1.37%

St. Alban's Bay AIS Project 49 1.29%

Code Book 46 1.22%

What's New? 41 1.08%

Photo Gallery 36 0.95%

Crime Alerts 36 0.95%

Lake Minnetonka 35 0.92%

Email List 34 0.9%

Budget & Finances 34 0.9%

Watercraft Spaces 31 0.82%
Links 30 0.79%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 29 0.77%

Well Water 28 0.74%

Elections 27 0.71%

Spring Clean-Up Day 26 0.69%

The reports offered in
your Site Statistics tool
only track activity on
the public side of your
site.

In each report, a section
named "Default" and a
section named "Home"
may appear.

A page view gets
attributed to "Default"
when a visitor to your
site types your URL into
his or her Web browser. 
In most cases, the
"Default" section is your
Home Page.

A page view gets
attributed to "Home"
each time a visitor clicks
the "Home" button on
your Web site.

In the Page View
(Default) report, only
sections with Web traffic
are reported and they
are listed in page view
order.

In the Page View by
Section report, sections
are listed in the order
they appear in the
navigation menu and
are reported regardless
of their traffic level.

In the Referrers report,
it is important to
remember that your
own site acts like a
referrer.  So, don't be
surprised if you see your
own Web address(es)
listed -- this tracks the
number of times people
went from one part of
your site to another.

Quick Tips

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=ContentTools
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=DataCenter
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Security
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=11%2F15%2F2014&EndDate=12%2F15%2F2014&report=0
http://help.avenet.net/
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Login&action=logout
http://www.greenwoodmn.com/?persistdesign=none
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8F3A3A9D-5458-4CB6-BB1F-AC94BB9B09DF%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B030CFE4C-5016-4145-982B-BC20CF1CE9B0%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B05D0F828-E762-44A3-BC47-B094E012C13F%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF7C1F295-9D1A-47F1-B520-906AEA4C1EF7%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BFF4DABAE-9793-4C75-9595-89E365126209%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC446C0E6-C85B-4D6B-9F2A-45390CDE8A69%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB2F86E65-BD20-40B7-8A26-1B4DC4FF837A%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE8F16C03-E9EC-40F7-A931-F5A45B19576E%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BEC7D78ED-9B90-469C-87DA-F45E8296634D%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B937BBE21-87E7-4815-95EF-9E4DBD883B56%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B29DBC80E-711D-420C-8E7E-88949C90F651%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B41336A06-DF03-426F-BAC8-B478696E7ABE%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B09C69529-46DA-45C3-9D5A-F642FC7ACBC9%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5AF5BE04-E22D-498B-8DF0-E4E97E512089%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B7D523E15-7556-4375-B814-673BCF885086%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE04A1A51-136D-44C1-BD41-8FC4E61A774B%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B45BFFFAD-A74F-4A5C-881D-1DDEB689390B%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC4ED0441-B19F-4C17-8FAB-B27178681446%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B08153459-A93B-48DE-A049-7A47AB3B7C7D%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B86561FCE-AB6E-4655-9D85-28D89FDF4185%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA06C3108-5700-4A55-A324-1E2C07C9DC78%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8A0FD9DB-EF26-4B80-AB4F-C79C6F905931%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5FD2DB20-C5E6-4466-BB1F-5137A3A383FA%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC0861CA3-9AD6-44B8-83A0-3830DDD789F7%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=11%2F15%2F2014&EndDate=12%2F15%2F2014&report=0#


Generate Download File (.csv) for the current report: Generate and Download

Spring Clean-Up Day 26 0.69%

Public Safety 22 0.58%

Met Council Project 22 0.58%

Stormwater 21 0.55%

Animal Services 19 0.5%

Meetings 18 0.48%

Old Log Events 17 0.45%

Southshore Center 16 0.42%

Search Results 16 0.42%

Parks & Trails 16 0.42%

Meetings on TV 13 0.34%

Community Surveys 13 0.34%

Sewer Pipe Help 11 0.29%

--- 5 0.13%

TOTAL 3786 100%

Unique IPs by Section

Section Unique IPs Percent of Total IPs
Default Home Page 628 39.95%

Agendas, Etc. 87 5.53%

City Departments 85 5.41%

Mayor & City Council 58 3.69%

Planning Commission 48 3.05%

Forms & Permits 38 2.42%

Garbage & Recycling 38 2.42%

Welcome to Greenwood 37 2.35%

St. Alban's Bay AIS Project 36 2.29%

What's New? 32 2.04%

Code Book 32 2.04%

Assessments & Taxes 28 1.78%

Crime Alerts 25 1.59%

Photo Gallery 24 1.53%

Comp Plan & Maps 23 1.46%

Email List 23 1.46%

Links 22 1.4%

Lake Minnetonka 21 1.34%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 21 1.34%

RFPs & Bids 21 1.34%

Watercraft Spaces 19 1.21%

Well Water 19 1.21%

Public Safety 18 1.15%

Elections 18 1.15%

Budget & Finances 16 1.02%

Animal Services 16 1.02%

Meetings 16 1.02%

Old Log Events 15 0.95%

Stormwater 14 0.89%

Spring Clean-Up Day 14 0.89%

Southshore Center 14 0.89%

Parks & Trails 12 0.76%

Met Council Project 12 0.76%

Community Surveys 11 0.7%

Meetings on TV 10 0.64%

Sewer Pipe Help 9 0.57%

Search Results 8 0.51%

--- 4 0.25%

TOTAL 1572 100%

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC0861CA3-9AD6-44B8-83A0-3830DDD789F7%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B2EE6F67F-9BE4-4076-8A33-F589B91B72C4%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B0B5F04CA-6531-4F3D-B8D2-C0C3BFA64D12%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B7F9AEDE7-125C-44E5-9A1F-3C7A93195E8B%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE2CCCFEF-5547-4416-81A6-0ACBB34571E6%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B12A653D6-4378-49A7-A3FC-97A7073E27C9%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB4737361-6BA3-43DC-893C-D8AE06A935AA%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE4E6E072-F7DA-4CB1-A638-8915989F8078%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B6428E068-96A6-40C7-9082-13636C643E44%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B184AC25F-91BE-4826-A9F5-B388A80DC23E%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF458B3B5-588F-49DF-ACE1-F64600152C67%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5EFC3CE3-C0E6-4AFE-BC8B-FD662DC0B6DE%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B42D1BE40-33C1-416C-99B2-F8D870239B80%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BFBA50B9F-9AF7-4CC6-9D2D-09D56A461712%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2014&EndDate=12/15/2014&report=1


From: Debra Kind dkind100@gmail.com
Subject: Re: An over due Thank You

Date: December 23, 2014 at 9:08 AM
To: Kari Rusing karirusing@comcast.net
Cc: Mike G Brown gmikebrown@mchsi.com, Shawn E. Rusing ShawnRusing@comcast.net

Kari & Shawn —

Thank you for the thank-you note :-) People often say that being Mayor is a thankless job. But that is not true. Fine people like 
you thank me all of the time and it is very much appreciated. I am glad there was a solution to the runoff problem by the 
Greenwoods on the Lake pond. I will share your note with the city engineer and the rest of the city council. Note: Councilman Bob 
Quam deserves a lot of credit for working with the city engineer to come up with a solution.

Have a Happy Christmas and Merry 2015!

Deb

DEBRA J. KIND
Mayor, City of Greenwood
20225 Cottagewood Road
Deephaven, MN 55331
www.greenwoodmn.com
Main: 952.474.6633
Direct: 612.718.6753
____________________________

On Dec 23, 2014, at 8:31 AM, Kari Rusing <karirusing@comcast.net> wrote:

Dear Mayor Deb - 
Thank you to you, the Greenwood City Council and City Engineer, Dave Martini, for the quick response and construction of the 
run-off water project for Greenwood on the Lake.  The result fits in beautifully with the boulevard and hopefully, this will change 
the water flow for the coming spring and summer.  It looks like it will work…..as long as Shorewood addresses the flow from their 
side!
Many of the residents of our community have commented on the positive changes.  
My apologies to you for the delay in writing you this note……however, our thanks is certainly is not forgotten.
Wishing you all a wonderful Holiday.
Kind regards-
Kari & Shawn Rusing
4725 Lodge Lane

mailto:Kinddkind100@gmail.com
mailto:Kinddkind100@gmail.com
mailto:Rusingkarirusing@comcast.net
mailto:Rusingkarirusing@comcast.net
mailto:Browngmikebrown@mchsi.com
mailto:Browngmikebrown@mchsi.com
mailto:RusingShawnRusing@comcast.net
mailto:RusingShawnRusing@comcast.net
http://www.greenwoodmn.com/
mailto:karirusing@comcast.net

	2015 01-07 Agenda
	- MEMO Consent no date
	2014 12-03 Minutes
	NOVEMBER CASH SUMMARY.xls
	Greenwood CD Report 12-22-14.xls
	December Payables Check Register
	December Payables for Council Approval
	January 2015 Payroll Register
	- MEMO LID
	12-18-14 EX Letter to DNR
	2014-69 EX Intent Regarding the Establishment of a St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement District (signed)
	- MEMO recreational fires
	Ord 241 Recreational Fires
	- MEMO SSC
	1996 SSC Cooperative Agreement Signed
	2014 07-14 Greenwood SSC Withdrawal
	2014 12-16 SSC Letter from Excelsior
	- MEMO Volunteer Accident Coverage
	Greenwood Volunteer Accident Plan quote
	Volunteer Accident Coverage Quote
	workerscompcoverageguide
	LMCIT Workers’ Compensation Coverage Guide
	I. About the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT)
	II. Workers’ Compensation Coverage
	A. Injury definition
	B. Benefits
	C. Unique features of LMCIT’s workers’ compensation coverage 
	1. Exposure testing 
	2. Employer’s liability
	3. Federal laws
	4. Obstructing an employee from seeking benefits
	5. Elected and appointed officials
	a. Adopting an ordinance or resolution to provide workers’ compensation coverage to elected and appointed officials
	b. Adopting an ordinance or resolution to not provide workers’ compensation coverage to elected and appointed officials

	6. Separate boards and commissions
	a. Deciding whether boards and commissions should have stand-alone coverage 
	b. Extending coverage to officers of boards and commissions

	7. City volunteers
	a. Emergency volunteers
	b. Inmates on work release
	c. Other types of volunteers
	(1) Optional premises medical coverage
	(2) Optional volunteer accident coverage
	(a) Benefits 
	(i) Disability benefit
	(ii) Impairment benefit
	(iii) Death benefit
	(iv) Optional benefit

	(b) Costs for volunteer accident coverage
	(c) Application for volunteer accident coverage



	8. Firefighters
	a. Firefighter definition
	b. When coverage applies
	c. Indemnity benefits for volunteer firefighters
	d. Benefits for heart and lung diseases
	(1) Heart and lung disease
	(2) Cancer
	(3) Infectious diseases

	e. Non-smoker credit for peace officers and firefighters



	III. Premium options
	A. Regular premium option
	B. Retrospective rating option
	1. Eligibility
	2. How the retrospective rating option works
	a. Annual adjustments
	b. Closing past retrospective years
	(1) Advantages of closing past retrospective years
	(2) Disadvantages of closing past retrospective years


	3. Effect on experience modification factor
	4. Loss control
	5. Deciding whether to choose a retrospective rating option

	C. Deductible option
	1. Eligibility
	2. How the deductible options work
	3. Effect on the experience modification factor
	4. Loss control
	5. Deciding whether to choose a deductible option


	IV. Filing a workers’ compensation claim

	- MEMO Appointments
	2014 12-11 B&M Letter
	Res 01-15 Appointments
	- MEMO Council Reports no date
	- MEMO FYI no date
	2014 10-31 Speed Report St. Alban's Bay Rd
	2014 12-04 MCES Letter
	2014 12-08 FW Metropolitan Council Meter Station M416 Project Information
	2014 12-08 MCES Meter Station Project M416 Sheets
	2014 12-15 Web Chart.xls
	2014 12-15 Web Report
	2014 12-23 GW on the Lake Thank-You Note

